
 

Page 1 of 2 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
August 21, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL 
CALL  

 
2. OPEN FORUM 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

  
a. APPROVAL OF August 21, 2017 AGENDA 
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

i. July 17, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 
c. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING July 31, 2017 

i. Approval of Warrant No. 602 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS   
a. Board of Commissioners to share communications 
b. Discussion of the Special Use Application for the Park District’s Master Plan  
c. Proclamation of Merit in Appreciation of the Kiwanis Club of Oak Brook 
 

5. STAFF RECOGNITION  
a. Kim Catris, new Recreation Supervisor/Pioneer Programs 
b. Kelsey Crecchio, new Facility Manager 
c. Ryan Husch, new Facility Supervisor 

 
6. REPORTS:  

a. Administrative, IT, and Marketing Report 
b. Finance & Human Resources Report 
c. Recreation & Facilities Report 
d. Parks & Planning Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Page 2 of 2 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
August 21, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Credit Card Authorization Signature Policy 
b. Resolution 17-0821: A Resolution Regarding the Review of Minutes for Closed Meetings 

January 1989 through March 20, 2017 
c. Ordinance No.17-0822 An Ordinance Authorizing the Destruction of the Verbatim 

Record of Certain Closed Meetings 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Amendment to the Articles of Agreement for the Gateway Special Recreation 

Association 
b. New Administration Policy and Procedure: 6.15 Video and Electronic Surveillance Policy 

and Procedure 
c. Amendment to Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual: Section 4.8 Fund 

Balance/Net Assets Policy 
d. Resolution 17-0823: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving 

an Increase in the Contract Price of $10,000 or More for the Tennis Center HVAC 
Upgrade with Pandecon, Inc. (***Requires Board Action at this Meeting.) 

e. Resolution 17-0824: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving 
an Increase in the Contract Price of $10,000 or More for the Family Locker Room 
Renovation with Kingston Tile Company, Ltd. (***Requires Board Action at this Meeting.) 

 
9. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK 

COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON September 18, 2017, 6:30 p.m. 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 



 

Page 1 of 3 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
August 21, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL 
CALL [Call to Order the Regular Meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of 
Commissioners and ask the Recording Secretary to conduct the Roll Call.] 

 
2. OPEN FORUM [Ask whether there are any public comments under “Open Forum.” If necessary, 

the President may advise speakers to observe the rules set forth in Section 1.1VII B of the 
Rules of the Board of Park Commissioners.] 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA [Request a motion (and second) to approve taking a Single Omnibus Vote 

on the Consent Agenda, as Presented. Roll Call Vote—VOTE MUST BE UNANIMOUS. 
 
Then ask for a motion (and second) to approve the Consent Agenda, as presented.  Roll Call 
Vote…] 
  

a. APPROVAL OF August 21, 2017 AGENDA 
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

i. July 17, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 
c. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING July 31, 2017 

i. Approval of Warrant No. 602 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS [Discussion Only]   
a. Board of Commissioners to share communications 
b. Discussion of the Special Use Application for the Park District’s Master Plan  
c. Proclamation of Merit in Appreciation of the Kiwanis Club of Oak Brook [Invite 

representatives of the Oak Brook Kiwanis to stand by podium for photo op.  President 
may read proclamation and present the proclamation to the Kiwanis.] 

 
5. STAFF RECOGNITION [Introduce new staff.] 

a. Kim Catris, new Recreation Supervisor/Pioneer Programs 
b. Kelsey Crecchio, new Facility Manager 
c. Ryan Husch, new Facility Supervisor 

  



 

Page 2 of 3 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
August 21, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

6. REPORTS: [Discussion Only] 
a. Administrative, IT, and Marketing Report 
b. Finance & Human Resources Report 
c. Recreation & Facilities Report 
d. Parks & Planning Report 

 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Credit Card Authorization Signature Policy [Request a motion and a second to approve 
the Credit Card Authorization Signature Policy eliminating the requirement to collect a 
customer signature for any credit card authorization/transaction less than $25.00.  Roll 
Call Vote….] 

b. Resolution 17-0821: A Resolution Regarding the Review of Minutes for Closed Meetings 
January 1989 through March 20, 2017 [Request a motion and a second to approve 
Resolution 17-0821: A Resolution Regarding the Review of Minutes for Closed Meetings 
from January 1989 through March 20, 2017.  Roll Call Vote…] 

c. Ordinance No.17-0822 An Ordinance Authorizing the Destruction of the Verbatim 
Record of Certain Closed Meetings [Request a motion and a second to approve 
Ordinance 17-0822: An Ordinance Authorizing the Destruction of Verbatim Record of 
Certain Closed Meetings.  Roll Call Vote…] 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Amendment to the Articles of Agreement for the Gateway Special Recreation 

Association [Discussion Only.] 
b. New Administration Policy and Procedure: 6.15 Video and Electronic Surveillance Policy 

and Procedure [Discussion Only.] 
c. Amendment to Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual: Section 4.8 Fund 

Balance/Net Assets Policy [Discussion Only.] 
d. Resolution 17-0823: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving 

an Increase in the Contract Price of $10,000 or More for the Tennis Center HVAC 
Upgrade with Pandecon, Inc. (***Requires Board Action at this Meeting.) [Request a 
motion and a second to waive the Board’s Rules to approve at this meeting, Resolution 
17-0823: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving an Increase 
in The Contract Price Of $10,000 Or More For the Tennis Center HVAC Upgrade with 
Pandecon, Inc. for wiring and lighting repairs. Roll Call Vote….   
 



 

Page 3 of 3 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
August 21, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

 
Then ask for a motion and a second to approve Resolution 17-0823: A Resolution 
Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving an Increase in The Contract Price 
Of $10,000 Or More For the Tennis Center HVAC Upgrade with Pandecon, Inc. for 
wiring and lighting repairs.  Roll Call Vote…] 

e. Resolution 17-0824: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving 
an Increase in the Contract Price of $10,000 or more for the Family Locker Room 
Renovation with Kingston Tile Company, Ltd. (***Requires Board Action at this Meeting.) 
[Request a motion and a second to waive the Board’s Rules to approve at this meeting, 
Resolution 17-0824: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving 
an Increase in the Contract Price of $10,000 or More for the Family Locker Room 
Renovation with Kingston Tile Company, LTD. for tile partitions.  Roll Call Vote…  
 
Then ask for a motion and a second to approve Resolution 17-0824: A Resolution 
Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving an Increase in the Contract Price 
of $10,000 or More for the Family Locker Room Renovation with Kingston Tile 
Company, LTD. for tile partitions.  Roll Call Vote…] 

 
9. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK 

COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON September 18, 2017, 6:30 p.m. [Announce the next 
meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners will be held on September 18, 
2017, 6:30 p.m.] 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT [Request a motion and second to Adjourn the Meeting. Voice Vote  “All In 
Favor”…]  



Page 1 of 7 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
July 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL 
CALL  

 
President Knitter called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.in the Recreation Center’s 
Canterberry Room.  Commissioners Tan, Trombetta, and President Knitter answered “present.”   
Commissioner Truedson was absent.  Also present were Laure Kosey, Executive Director, 
Karen Spandikow, Assistant Director of Recreation and Facilities, Marco Salinas, Chief 
Financial Officer, Bob Johnson, Director of Parks and Planning and Nicole Karas, Park District 
Attorney.    

 
2. OPEN FORUM 

 
President Knitter asked if there were any public comments. 

  
 There were no public comments. 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

  
a. APPROVAL OF July 17, 2017 AGENDA 

 
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
i. June 19, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
c. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING June 30, 2017 

 
i. Approval of Warrant No. 601 

 
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner  
Carson, to approve taking a Single Omnibus Vote on the Consent Agenda, as presented. 

 
 There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
 Ayes:  Commissioner Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
 Nays:  None  

Absent:  Commissioner Truedson   
 
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to approve the 
Consent Agenda as presented. 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 7 
 
 

 There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
 Ayes:  Commissioners Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 

Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Truedson   
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS  
  

a. Board of Commissioners to share communications 
 
Commissioner Carson said the flowers in front of the Recreation Center look great.  
 
President Knitter said that she received several positive comments regarding the recent 
Walk in the Park event.  Commissioner Carson also confirmed that she did too.   
 

5. STAFF RECOGNITION  
 

a. Liz Gnippe, New Corporate and Community Relations 
 

President Knitter introduced Liz Gnippe, the new Corporate and Community Relations 
liaison, to the board.   
 
Ms. Kosey said that Ms. Gnippe has hit the ground running since she started and has been 
doing a fantastic job.  
 
The board welcomed Ms. Gnippe.  

 
6. REPORTS:  

 
a. Administrative, IT, and Marketing Report 

 
Ms. Kosey presented her report, which can be found in the Park District records. 
 
Ms. Kosey noted that she and staff will be going before the Village Board on September 
12th, to get approval of a special use permit for the revised Master Plan.  She urged all 
board members to also attend.  
 
Regarding the new responsive website design, President Knitter asked to review it 
before it goes live.  
 
Ms. Kosey noted that immediately following this evening’s meeting, she, staff, and board 
members will be meeting with Forest Gate representatives regarding the proposed LED 
field lights.  
 
There were no comments or questions regarding Ms. Kosey’s report.  
 

b. Finance & Human Resources Report 
 
Marco Salinas presented his report, which can be found in the Park District records.  
 



Page 3 of 7 
 
 

Mr. Salinas reviewed all financial reports with the board comparing current revenue and 
expense figures with the prior year.  
 
It was noted that party rentals and day trip revenues are lower than last year. 
 
Regarding the lower revenue figures for Pioneer programming, Commissioner Tan 
questioned why we are now using a third party company to manage the trips.  He said 
this is a cost that could be avoided. 
 
Ms. Spandikow said the third-party company is only used for long distance out-of-state 
trips which are break-even events for the Park District.   
 
President Knitter noted that all the local trips are done in-house.   
 
It was noted by the board that aquatic programs revenue has gone down significantly, 
and asked if staff believes this is a trend, and if so, what is planned to reverse it? 
 
Ms. Spandikow said she believes it is due in large part to the Goldfish schools that 
recently opened in Elmhurst and Burr Ridge.  She said she hopes to lure people back 
with the renovation of the locker rooms and our lower prices.  She said she and staff will 
be meeting with the marketing department next week to create a promotion and are also 
working with area youth swim teams. 
 
Mr. Salinas noted that there currently is a lag time for applying the Aquatic Center’s 
membership revenue for those memberships that are a Fitness Center/Aquatic Center 
combination.   He said the fee is received by the Fitness Center and split manually so 
the Aquatic Center’s portion is delayed.  
 
There were no further comments or questions regarding Mr. Salinas’ report. 
 

c. Recreation & Facilities Report 
 
With the absence of Dave Thommes, Karen Spandikow presented his report, which can 
be found in the Park District records. 
 
Ms. Spandikow reviewed the draft rendering for the proposed inclusive playground.  
 
Ms. Kosey asked the Board for their input regarding the playground.   
 
Commissioner Tan suggested that more seating in shaded areas be added.   
 
Ms. Kosey said there will be some seating in shaded areas in the initial roll out of the 
playground, and more will be added at a later time. 
 
President Knitter suggested that outdoor fitness equipment for adults be added as she 
has heard from parents that they would like to get a work out while watching their kids.  
 
Mr. Johnson said adult fitness equipment is difficult to add because many safety 
organizations frown upon it being present on a playground for fear that a child may use it 
and get hurt.  
 



Page 4 of 7 
 
 

The Board asked if pets would be allowed on playground?   
 
Ms Kosey said she hasn’t thought about it before, but assumed that they will eventually 
end up there from time to time.  
 
The Board asked that a drinking fountain be included.  
 
Commissioner Tan asked if this design allows for future feature expansion.   
 
Ms. Spandikow said there will be no available room except to add more shaded seating.  
 
There were no comments or questions regarding Ms. Spandikow’s report. 
 

d. Parks & Planning Report 
 

Bob Johnson presented his report, which can be found in the Park District records. 
 
Mr. Johnson said he recently visited the Elgin Park District to view their LED lighted field.  
He said the light testing contractor also attended and did light measurements which 
came back all very good.  He said he is confident that the LED lights will be good for the 
baseball field.  It was noted that representatives from Forest Gate were also visited the 
Eglin field and took pictures of the lights standing directly below them instead of from the 
outside of the field.   
 
Mr. Johnson said staff is currently wrapping up work on the remaining portion of the barn 
at the Dean Nature Sanctuary. 
 
Mr. Johnson said the synthetic soccer field will be closed for a short period of time for 
remediation work.  He said the field turf is still under warranty and there has been an 
adhesive issue with some fields, but not ours.   
 
There were no comments or questions regarding Mr. Johnson’s report. 

 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Ordinance 17-0717: An Ordinance Declaring Surplus Personal Property and Authorizing 

the Sale or Conveyance Thereof 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, 
to approve Ordinance 17-0717: An ordinance declaring surplus personal property and 
authorizing the sale or conveyance thereof.  
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  

 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  

Absent:  Commissioner Truedson   
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 7 
 
 

b. Family Locker Room Renovation Bid 
 

Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, 
to accept the lowest qualified bids for the base scope of work, plus alternates 1,3 and 5 
for a total cost not-to-exceed $1,051,549.  
 
Representatives from Wight and Company provided an update regarding the locker 
room renovation project. Robert Ijams, Director of Parks and Recreation for Wight & 
Company, apologized to the board for Wight’s errors in the design and budget for this 
project. He stressed that Wight & Company will stand by their work and have offered a 
$30,000 credit for their design work.  
 
Ms. Kosey noted to the board that Alternative 1 of the project is for the front desk, 
Alternative 3 is for the locker and installation, and Alternative 5 is for shower renovation.  
 
President Knitter said the carpentry and plumbing portion of the project gives her 
concern because the lower bid is way, way, lower than the other bids received.  She 
asked if Wight & Company has used these contractors before. She stressed that the 
Park District wants quality work performed.  
 
Craig Polte, Director of Athletic Fields & Facilities at Wight & Company, said he has a lot 
of experience working with the carpentry contractor and that they are a good outfit.  He 
said they have worked a few times with the plumbing contractor and believes that their 
bid was lower due to their close proximity to Oak Brook (they work out of Downers 
Grove).  He also said that Kingston Tile made an error in their tile estimate, but said they 
will honor the price quoted.  Mr. Polte said he has no reservations working with these 
two contractors. 
 
President Knitter said timing is very important in that the Park District has only a small 
window of time to get this project completed.  
 
Mr. Ijams said Wight & Company has assigned a senior project superintendent to this 
project who will be on site every day to ensure that work is progressing in a timely 
manner.  
  
Commissioner Tan said he is hoping that the construction process will go smoothly and 
that the Park District receives assurance that it will be finished on time.   
 
Commissioner Trombetta said this project has been a learning process for both the Park 
District and Wight & Company and he expects the very best from Wight & Company.  
 
President Knitter said that she is very appreciative that Wight & Company is owning up 
to their error.  
 
There was no further discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  

 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  

Absent:  Commissioner Truedson   
 



Page 6 of 7 
 
 

c. Family Recreation Center HVAC Equipment Purchase Through US Communities 
Cooperative Purchasing Group 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Carson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to 
approve the purchase of two Trane packaged gas/electric rooftop united from Trane U.S. 
Inc. and through the District’s membership in the U.S. Communities Cooperative 
Purchasing Program for a not-to-exceed cost of $54,751.  
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  

 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None 
  Absent:  Commissioner Truedson   

 
d. Family Recreation Center Lockers Purchase  

 
Staff recommended for the Board to take no action on this agenda topic and to not 
proceed with the purchase of the lockers through the Cooperative Purchasing Group as 
a comparable price was submitted through the Family Locker Room Renovation Project 
Bid.  
 

e. Approval of a Software License and Services Agreement with Bellefeuil, Szur & 
Associates, Inc. (“BS&A”) For The BS&A Financial Software Applications 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to 
approve a software license and services agreement with Bellefeuil, Szur & Associates, 
Inc. (“BS&A”), for the BS&A financial software applications in the amount of $87,755. 
 
Mr. Salinas said this will be a significant improvement to what we currently have.  
 
Ms. Salinas noted that the Park District attorney is still working on the language for this 
agreement.  
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  

 
  Ayes:  Commissioners Tan, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  

Absent:  Commissioner Truedson   
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Credit Card Authorization Policy 
 
This issue was presented for review and discussion only. 
 
Mr. Salinas said this authorization policy will allow for “no signature required” for 
customer purchases under $25.  He said he reached out to the credit card processor 
who said there is no problem offering this convenience. 
 
President Knitter asked if the Park District is chip compliant.  
 



Page 7 of 7 
 
 

Mr. Salinas said it is with the exception of the Tennis Center.   
 
Mr. Pop, Tennis Director, who was present in the audience, said there have been some 
software issues that are currently being worked out and he expects the Tennis Center to 
be chip compliant shortly.  
 

b. Ordinance No.17-0822 An Ordinance Authorizing the Destruction of the Verbatim 
Record of Certain Closed Meetings 
 
This issue was presented for review and discussion only. 

 
 There was no discussion regarding this matter.  
 

9. CONVENE THE CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to convene 
the closed session at the hour of 7:19 p.m.  
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by voice vote.  
 

10. CLOSED SESSION 
a. Discussion and Approval of Closed Meeting Minutes, March 20, 2017  
b. Semi Annual Review of Closed Meeting Minutes for Release 

i. Resolution 17-0821: A Resolution Regarding the Review of Minutes for Closed 
Meetings January 1989 through March 20, 2017 

 
11. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

 
Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to 
reconvene to open session at the hour of 7:23 p.m. 
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by voice vote.  
 

12. POTENTIAL ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
There was no action taken on items discussed during open session.  
 

13. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON August 21, 2017, 6:30 p.m. 
 
President Knitter announced that the next regular meeting will be held on August 21, 2017, at 
6:30 p.m.  
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Trombetta, to adjourn 
at the hour of 7:24 p.m.  
 
 
_________________________________ 
Laure L. Kosey, Executive Director 



 Original 
2017/2018 

Annual Budget 
 July 2017 

Actual 

 2017/2018 
Year-To-Date

Actual 

 2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual as a % of 
Annual Budget 

2016/2017 Year-
To-Date Actual

2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual Higher/
(Lower) than 
2016/2017

Percent 
Change

REVENUES

 Administration 
Property Taxes  $      1,528,000  $      12,217  $         775,001 50.7%  $           763,165  $                  11,835 N/A

Personal Property Repl. Taxes                95,000                   -                 16,007 16.8%                  32,421                    (16,414) -50.6%

Investment Income                10,000                884                 2,452 24.5%                    2,100                           353 16.8%

Other                  3,000                  68                       90 3.0%                       240                          (150) N/A

 Central Park                97,000             9,085               37,892 39.1%                  26,099                      11,792 45.2%

 Dean Property                         -                     -                          -   N/A                           -                                 -   N/A

 Building-Recreation Center              987,062        161,871             243,716 24.7%                256,985                    (13,268) -5.2%

 Central Park West                79,750             7,143               19,521 24.5%                  32,208                    (12,687) -39.4%

TOTAL REVENUES 2,799,812$      191,267$    1,094,679$      39.1% 1,113,217$        (18,538)$                 -1.7%

EXPENDITURES

 Administration 932,503$          61,391$      191,477$         20.5% 179,578$             $                  11,899 6.6%

 Central Park 608,519            47,894         139,852           23.0% 135,614              4,238                      3.1%

 Saddlebrook Park 17,870              1,920           4,424                24.8% 2,001                  2,422                      121.1%

 Forest Glen Park 28,631              172              10,837             37.8% 7,897                  2,940                      37.2%

 Chillem Park 7,465                 1,186           2,690                36.0% 405                      2,285                      564.2%

 Dean Property 13,948              1,730           2,127                15.2% 3,892                  (1,765)                     -45.3%

 Professional Services 81,200              6,061           6,061                7.5% 2,229                  3,833                      172.0%

 Contracts- Maintenance DNS 37,000              350              350                   0.9% 3,286                  (2,936)                     -89.3%

 Building-Recreation Center 964,376            61,435         182,232           18.9% 182,781              (549)                        -0.3%

 Central Park West 63,214              3,569           6,305                10.0% 7,031                  (726)                        -10.3%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,754,726$      185,708$    546,354$         19.8% 524,714$            21,641$                  4.1%

 TRANSFERS OUT 410,000$          -$             -$                  0.0% -$                         -$                             N/A

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND
TRANSFERS OUT

3,164,726$      185,708$    546,354$         17.3% 524,714$            21,641$                  4.1%

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES AND 

TRANSFERS OUT
(364,914)$        5,560$         548,324$         -150.3% 588,503$            (40,179)$                 -6.8%

Note> Fiscal year 2017/2018 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).
When comparing current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of 
+/- 10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District

Highlighted items reflect more than 10% change

General Fund Revenue and Expenditure Summary - Unaudited
Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through July 31, 2017 and 2016

25.00% completed (3 out of 12 months)

Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 8/15/2017



 Original 
2017/2018 

Annual Budget 
 July 2017 

Actual 

 2017/2018 
Year-To-Date

Actual 

 2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual as a % of 
Annual Budget 

2016/2017 
Year-To-Date 

Actual

2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual Higher/
(Lower) than 
2016/2017

Percent 
Change

REVENUES

 Administration 
Property Taxes  $         894,000  $         6,946  $         440,615 49.3%  $         433,880  $                   6,735 N/A

Personal Property Repl. Taxes                32,000                    -                    5,039 15.7%                10,207                      (5,167) -50.6%

Investment Income                12,000             1,272                  3,526 29.4%                  3,084                           442 14.3%

Other                  3,000                200                     720 24.0%                     811                            (91) -11.2%

 Fitness Center              849,212           43,212             201,543 23.7%              203,781                      (2,238) -1.1%

 Aquatic Center              474,032           69,949             140,375 29.6%              118,601                     21,774 18.4%

 Aquatic Recreation Programs              607,588           23,465             199,183 32.8%              227,349                    (28,166) -12.4%

 Children's Programs                83,960             3,596               29,868 35.6%                29,868                              -   0.0%

 Preschool Programs              309,767                    -                 40,281 13.0%                50,452                    (10,171) -20.2%

 Youth Programs              168,335             8,266             145,674 86.5%              159,122                    (13,448) -8.5%

 Adult Programs                53,890             4,429               22,598 41.9%                21,278                        1,320 6.2%

 Pioneer Programs              169,850             3,941               35,581 20.9%                76,511                    (40,930) -53.5%

 Special Events and Trips                91,765                101               36,824 40.1%                44,333                      (7,510) -16.9%

 Marketing                96,700             1,925               15,642 16.2%                  9,150                        6,492 70.9%

TOTAL REVENUES 3,846,099$      167,301$    1,317,467$      34.3% 1,388,425$      (70,958)$                -5.1%

EXPENDITURES

 Administration 896,234$          82,614$       156,687$         17.5% 164,041$           $                  (7,353) -4.5%

 Fitness Center 695,987            69,934         145,656            20.9% 156,661            (11,005)                   -7.0%

 Aquatic Center 864,800            86,810         184,719            21.4% 206,041            (21,321)                   -10.3%

 Aquatic Recreation Programs 319,880            24,787         75,496              23.6% 79,578              (4,082)                     -5.1%

 Children's Programs 80,668              9,628           14,330              17.8% 13,472              858                         6.4%

 Preschool Programs 247,199            12,073         32,113              13.0% 32,040              73                            0.2%

 Youth Programs 139,340            29,032         50,635              36.3% 47,445              3,190                      6.7%

 Adult Programs 49,351              4,639           8,898                18.0% 8,362                 536                         6.4%

 Pioneer Programs 166,191            6,824           19,802              11.9% 61,647              (41,845)                   -67.9%

 Special Events and Trips 91,430              7,279           40,793              44.6% 24,897              15,897                    63.8%

 Marketing 333,851            27,737         65,723              19.7% 69,279              (3,556)                     -5.1%

 Capital Outlay 363,000            -                    -                         0.0% -                         -                               N/A

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,247,931$      361,357$    794,853$         18.7% 863,462$          (68,609)$                -7.9%

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES

(401,832)$        (194,056)$   522,615$         -130.1% 524,963$          (2,348)$                  -0.4%

Note> Fiscal year 2017/2018 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).
When comparing current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of 
+/- 10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District
Recreation Fund Revenue and Expenditure Summary - Unaudited

Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through July 31, 2017 and 2016
25.00% completed (3 out of 12 months)

 Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance 
Highlighted items reflect more than 10% 

change

Prepared by: Marco Salinas Last Update: 08/10/2017



 Original 
2017/2018 

Annual 
Budget 

 July 2017 
Actual 

 2017/2018 
Year-To-Date

Actual 

 2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual as a % of 
Annual Budget 

2016/2017 Year-
To-Date Actual

2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual Higher/
(Lower) than 
2016/2017

Percent 
Change

REVENUES
 Administration  $            4,900  $                516  $           1,278 26.1%  $                    603  $                      676 112.1%

 Building- Racquet Club                1,700                    163                   347 20.4%                        240                          106 44.2%

 Programs- Racquet Club        1,457,500               71,105           397,525 27.3%                345,110                     52,416 15.2%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,464,100$    71,783$           399,150$       27.3% 345,953$            53,197$                 15.4%

EXPENSES
 Administration 710,040$        64,967$           139,178$       19.6% 138,502$             $                      676 0.5%

 Building- Racquet Club 366,920          36,695             59,352            16.2% 63,549                 (4,197)                    -6.6%

 Programs- Racquet Club 490,371          36,369             107,405          21.9% 95,374                 12,031                   12.6%

 Capital Outlay 495,000          3,891               3,891              0.8% 8,935                   (5,044)                    N/A

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,062,331$    141,921$         309,826$       15.0% 306,360$            3,466$                   1.1%

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENSES

(598,231)$      (70,138)$         89,324$         -14.9% 39,593$              49,731$                 125.6%

Note> Fiscal year 2017/2018 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).
When comparing current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of 
+/- 10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District
Tennis Center (Recreational Facilities Fund) Revenue and Expense Summary - Unaudited

Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through July 31, 2017 and 2016
25.00% completed (3 out of 12 months)

 Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance Highlighted items reflect more than 10% change

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 8/15/2017



Note> In December 2016 the Park District recorded $1,163,610 in bond proceeds in the Capital Projects Fund.  This is the primary reason for the large increase in YTD 
revenues during FY 2016/2017.

$7
36

,6
06

 

$2
,7

22
,5

39
 

$3
,1

88
,7

18
 

$3
,7

73
,2

35
 

$5
,4

06
,2

55
 

$6
,0

71
,0

50
 

$6
,5

42
,2

96
 

$7
,0

62
,1

64
 

$7
,5

28
,3

43
 

$7
,8

61
,7

31
 

$8
,1

70
,1

85
 

$8
,5

79
,0

95
 

$7
86

,6
58

 

$2
,8

51
,1

18
 

$3
,3

35
,1

78
 

$3
,8

96
,4

73
 

$5
,5

89
,8

87
 

$6
,2

76
,9

54
 

$6
,7

13
,3

50
 

$8
,3

51
,3

63
 

$8
,8

50
,1

02
 

$9
,2

37
,4

90
 

$9
,5

71
,9

86
 

$1
0,

06
1,

89
3 

$8
16

,7
85

 

$2
,8

91
,5

92
 

$3
,3

30
,7

84
 

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

Oak Brook Park District- Consolidated Year-to-Date Revenues (excl. transfers in)

YTD 2015/2016 Revenues YTD 2016/2017 Revenues YTD 2017/2018 Revenues

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 8/15/2017



Note> During June 2017 the Park District recognized three payroll disbursements when compared to two disbursements in the prior year.  This is the primary reason for
the increased Y-T-D expenditures in June 2017 over the same period in 2016 and 2015. 

$3
00

,4
72

 

$8
31

,6
47

 

$1
,8

44
,6

03
 

$2
,4

02
,9

37
 

$3
,0

80
,0

07
 

$4
,2

61
,4

75
 

$4
,8

73
,8

69
 $5

,7
73

,4
89

 

$6
,4

84
,1

85
 

$7
,0

15
,2

81
 

$7
,5

51
,4

57
 $8

,4
09

,4
31

 

$3
05

,5
81

 

$8
71

,0
85

 

$1
,9

01
,6

35
 

$2
,5

35
,4

02
 

$3
,1

57
,7

89
 

$4
,2

65
,0

81
 

$4
,8

71
,2

33
 

$5
,5

60
,6

26
 

$6
,3

07
,4

13
 

$6
,8

68
,1

72
 

$7
,4

26
,8

14
 $8

,4
46

,5
71

 

$2
93

,8
76

 $1
,1

27
,5

30
 

$1
,8

68
,7

66
 

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $9,000,000

Oak Brook Park District- Consolidated Year-to-Date Expenditures/Expenses (excl. transfers out)

YTD 2015/2016 Expenditures YTD 2016/2017 Expenditures YTD 2017/2018 Expenditures

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 8/15/2017



$4
36

,1
34

 

$1
,8

90
,8

92
 

$1
,3

44
,1

15
 

$1
,3

70
,2

97
 

$2
,3

26
,2

48
 

$1
,8

09
,5

76
 

$1
,6

68
,4

28
 

$1
,2

88
,6

75
 

$1
,0

44
,1

58
 

$8
46

,4
49

 

$6
18

,7
28

 

$1
69

,6
64

 

$4
81

,0
77

 

$1
,9

80
,0

33
 

$1
,4

33
,5

42
 

$1
,3

61
,0

71
 

$2
,4

32
,0

98
 

$2
,0

11
,8

73
 

$1
,8

42
,1

17
 

$2
,7

90
,7

37
 

$2
,5

42
,6

89
 

$2
,3

69
,3

18
 

$2
,1

45
,1

73
 

$1
,6

15
,3

22
 

$5
22

,9
09

 

$1
,7

64
,0

63
 

$1
,4

62
,0

18
 

$- $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

Oak Brook Park District- Consolidated Year-to-Date Net Surplus/(Deficit)

YTD 2015/2016 Net Surplus/(Deficit) YTD 2016/2017 Net Surplus/(Deficit) YTD 2017/2018 Net Surplus/(Deficit)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 8/15/2017



  
CURRENT 

MONTH 
ACTUAL

Y-T-D 
ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

FUND NAME    
GENERAL CORPORATE FUND

REVENUE 191,267$    1,094,679$   2,799,812$          
EXPENSES 185,708$    546,354$      3,164,726$          
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 5,560$        548,324$      (364,914)$            

   
RECREATION FUND    

REVENUE 167,301$    1,317,467$   3,846,100$          
EXPENSES 361,357$    794,853$      4,247,931$          
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (194,056)$   522,615$      (401,831)$            

   
IMRF FUND     

REVENUE 1,613$        101,023$      185,750$             
EXPENSES 14,687$      51,995$        200,000$             
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (13,074)$     49,028$        (14,250)$              

   
   

LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND    
REVENUE 820$           51,460$        60,250$               
EXPENSES 55,362$      63,203$        168,305$             
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (54,542)$     (11,743)$      (108,055)$            

   
AUDIT FUND    

REVENUE 198$           11,437$        14,130$               
EXPENSES -$            -$             27,850$               
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 198$           11,437$        (13,720)$              

   
   

DEBT SERVICE FUND    
REVENUE 2,545$        159,508$      331,250$             
EXPENSES -$            -$             330,914$             
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 2,545$        159,508$      336$                    

   

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
SUMMARIZED REVENUE &  EXPENSE REPORT

 JULY, 2017

1
Prepared By: N Strathdee

8/10/2017



  
CURRENT 

MONTH 
ACTUAL

Y-T-D 
ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

FUND NAME    

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
SUMMARIZED REVENUE &  EXPENSE REPORT

 JULY, 2017

RECREATIONAL FACILITIES FUND    
(TENNIS CENTER)   

REVENUE 71,783$      399,150$      1,464,100$          
EXPENSES 141,921$    309,826$      2,062,331$          
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (70,138)$     89,324$        (598,231)$            

   
  

SPECIAL RECREATION FUND   
REVENUE 759$           47,632$        117,750$             
EXPENSES 7,045$        14,449$        124,700$             
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (6,286)$       33,183$        (6,950)$                

   
   

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND    
REVENUE 1,106$        34,067$        413,000$             
EXPENSES (45,104)$     19,729$        2,352,884$          
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 46,210$      14,339$        (1,939,884)$         

   
   

SOCIAL SECURITY FUND    
REVENUE 1,799$        114,361$      247,700$             
EXPENSES 20,260$      68,358$        258,000$             
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (18,461)$     46,003$        (10,300)$              

   
   

SUMMARY    
   REVENUE 439,192$    3,330,784$   9,479,842$          
   EXPENSES 741,237$    1,868,766$   12,937,640$        
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (302,045)$   1,462,018$   (3,457,799)$         

2
Prepared By: N Strathdee

8/10/2017



OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
CONSOLIDATED AGENCY TREASURER'S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED
TOTALS

 
REVENUES

Property Taxes 27,774$                                           
Back Taxes -                                                    
Replacement Taxes -                                                    
Recreation Program Fees 93,528                                             
Rec/Fitness Center Fees 43,212                                             
Rec/Aquatic Center Fees 93,412                                             
FRC/Building Rental Fees 125,027                                           
Theme Party Rental Fees 1,640                                               
Recreation Center Fees 35,174                                             
Shelter Building Rentals 7,143                                               
Field Rentals 9,085                                               
Interest 2,900                                               
Transfers -                                                    
Miscellaneous 298                                                   

TOTAL- REVENUES 439,192$                                         

DISBURSEMENTS
Warrant No.601 382,437$                                         
July, Payroll 358,800                                           

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 741,237$                                         

JULY, 2017

Prepared By: Nancy Strathdee
8/14/2017



ASSETS

Consolidated 

Totals

Current Assets

Cash and Investments 7,854,762$      

Receivables - Net of Allowances -                    

  Property Taxes 3,324,720        

  Accounts 208,685           

Due from Other Funds 64,998              

Prepaids 4,470                

Inventories 16,707              

     Total Current Assets 11,474,342$    

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets

  Nondepreciable 40,475              

  Depreciable 4,009,900        

  Accumulated Depreciation (2,825,068)       

    Total Noncurrent Assets 1,225,307        

     Total Assets  12,699,649      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Items-IMRF 108,818           

Total Assets and Deferred outflows of Resources 12,808,467      

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 39,092              

Accrued Payroll 11,690              

Other Payables 577,416           

Due To Other Funds 65,101              

Compensated Absences Payable 7,885                

    Total Liabilities 701,183           

Noncurrent Liabilities

Compensated Absences Payable 5,360                

Net Pension Liability - IMRF 189,830           

      Total Noncurrent Liabilities 195,190           

     Total Liabilities 896,373           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Property Taxes 3,231,741        

    Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,128,114        

Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,465,663        

Nonspendable 4,470                

Restricted 721,964           

Committed 4,265,876        

Unassigned 2,222,380        

     Total Fund Balances 8,680,353        

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances 12,808,467$    

Oak Brook Park District

Consolidated Agency Balance Sheet

as of July 31, 2017

FUND BALANCES

Prepared By: N Strathdee

8/15/2017



    OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

INVESTMENTS AS OF JULY, 2017

AMOUNT RATE MATURITY

EVERGREEN BANK  0.73% VARIES /MONEY MARKET

5,913,903.65$      

 

ILLINOIS FUNDS 

TENNIS CENTER 498,857.72$         VARIES CHECKING A/C

EVERGREEN CREDIT CARD ACCOUNT 501,456.66$         

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 6,914,218.03$      

Prepared By: N Strathdee

8/10/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Capital Expenditures

As of July 31, 2017

DESCRIPTION VENDOR DB/CR
CAPITAL ASSET 
REPLACEMENT

FACILITY/PARK 
IMPROVEMENTS

IT Security Camera Sterling Network Int 6,247.00$       6,247.00$            
IT Security Camera Shoe Me Cables 454.38            454.38                
Profession Svces  - Central Park Wight & Company 10,202.13        10,202.13             
Gabian Weir Replacement IDNR 2,825.00         2,825.00              
    
     
     

 
 Subtotal-Capital Improvement Fund 19,728.51$     9,526.38$           10,202.13$           

     
     

 Subtotal-Recreation Fund Capital -$                -                      -$                      
    
    

 TOTAL BALANCE 19,728.51$     9,526.38$           10,202.13$           

Prepared By: N Strathdee
8/3/2017





































































































































Birth date: (Month and Day): 07/07 
 
I decided to work at the OBPD because: I started in Pre-
School part time 8 years ago. I love the people and 
atmosphere here and I wanted to pursue a full-time 
position.  The Recreation Supervisor/Pioneer Coordinator 
seemed like a natural progression. 
 
My favorite childhood memory is: Spending the summers growing up with my cousins, swimming, and 
hanging out.  
 
The last good movie I saw: Sully    The last good book I read: Gone Girl  
 
My favorite meal: Thai spicy basil with chicken 
 
My personal hero: My parents – they have always been there for me with whatever I need. 
 
I’d love to meet: Vince Vaughn – he is hysterical! 
 
I’m better than anyone else when it comes to: making fun of myself 
 
My favorite place to vacation is: St. Croix because I like to: relax, swim and kayak 
 
My dream/goal is: Travel around the country when I retire and helping others with disasters through Red 
Cross, Habitat for Humanity, Operation BBQ relief or any other way possible.  
 
Three words that best describe me: funny, adventurous, compassionate 
 
Little known fact about me: I have also lived in Atlanta, GA. 
 
My most humbling experience: I am always humbled by how brave my friends/family have handled serious 
illnesses with such grace. 
 
My greatest accomplishment is: my family. 

Getting To Know 

Kim Catris 

Recreation Supervisor and 

Pioneer Coordinator 



 
 
 
 
Birth date: (Month and Day): August 15  
 
I decided to work at the OBPD because: Oak Brook Park District is a great organization! I am lucky to have 
gotten the opportunity to work with a great team.  
 
My favorite childhood memory is: Summer sports camps with friends.  
 
The last good movie I saw: Hacksaw Ridge  
 
My favorite meal: Buffalo Wings! You cannot go wrong!  
 
My favorite place to vacation is: Any beach will do, because I like to: relax.  
 
Three words that best describe me: energetic, reliable, kind.  
 
My greatest accomplishment is: being hired as the Facility Manager Position here at the Oak Brook Park 
District! 

Getting To Know 

Kelsey Crecchio 

Facility Manager 



 
Birthdate: March 27 
 
I decided to work at the OBPD because: of the great 
team. 
 
My favorite childhood memory is: playing youth 
athletics through my local park district.  
 
The last good movie I saw: Moana 
 
The last good book I read: The Devil in the White City 
 
My favorite meal: BBQ Ribs 
 
My personal hero: My brother 
 
I’d love to meet: Michael Jordan 
 
My favorite place to vacation is: Mexico because I like to do: a lot of relaxing on the beach. 
 
My dream/goal is: to play professional golf.  
 
Three words that best describe me: easygoing, fun-loving, family man. 
 
My greatest accomplishment is: my son, Declan. 

Getting To Know 

Ryan Husch 

Facility Supervisor 



 
 
 
 
 

Memo 
To:  Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners  

From:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director 

Date:  August 15, 2017 

Re:  July/August 2017: Admin., Corporate Relations, IT & Marketing   

July Board Meeting Follow Up:     

Revised Master Plan 
The Plan Commission approved the special use permit for the Master Plan with a vote of 6-0.  The Zoning Board of 
Appeals denied the park district request 4-2.  The Village Board meets to vote on this special use permit September 
12, 2017.   
 

Credit Card Authorization Policy 
Both the Family Recreation Center and the Tennis Center are compliant with credit card chip readers as of August 
14th.  The staff is recommending “no signature” required for any credit card transaction under $25.00.   

 
August Board Meeting Discussion Points: 
 
Gateway Special Recreation Association 

The City of Countryside will be joining the association again, so an amendment to the Articles of Agreements is 
needed.   
 

Fund Balance Policy 
This policy needed to be updated in order to properly reflect all of our funds and net assets. The CFO will be making 
a formal presentation with this agenda item.    

  



 Page 2 

 
July 2017 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Memo 
To: Board of Commissioners and Executive Director, Laure Kosey  
From: Marco Salinas, Chief Financial Officer  
Date: August 15, 2017 
Re: July 2017 Financials  

 
July 2017 FINANCIALS: 

General Fund 
 

We have now completed the first quarter of the fiscal year which represents 25.00% of the annual budget.  Year-to-
date (YTD) revenues in this fund equal $1,094,679 which approximates 39% of the annual budget and is a slight 
decrease over prior year’s revenues of $1,113,217.  On the expenditure side, YTD expenditures equal $546,354, or 
approximately 20% of budget and are higher than prior year’s expenditures of $524,714.  Following is a more 
detailed analysis of the General Fund’s YTD activity: 
 
Property Taxes- Property tax revenue is the largest single source revenue stream in this fund and comprises 
approximately 55% of all budgeted revenues.  This revenue is currently at 51% of budget since we have now 
received a substantial portion of the 1st installment.  Per the DuPage County Treasurer’s office, the 2nd installment is 
due to their office on September 1, 2017; therefore, we anticipate a significant increase in collections during the 
months of August and September. 
 
Personal Property Replacement Taxes- Although this revenue is within the 8.33% budget variance, it is lower than 
prior year due to the fact that we have not received our payment for July.  According to the Illinois Department of 
Revenue (IDOR), July’s payment in the amount of $30,311.42 was previously issued to us.  We presume that this 
payment has been lost in the mail and we are following-up on a replacement check.  Historically, these taxes are 
collected in eight installments during the months May, July, August, October, December, January, March, and April.  
 
Central Park- Field rental revenue is driving the favorable variance against budget and prior year revenues.  This 
revenue is currently at $37,892 which is an increase of $11,793, or 45%, over prior year’s amount of $26,099.  One 
reason for this increase is due to an additional soccer tournament that was held during the Memorial Day weekend 
which resulted in additional receipts of approximately $3,050.  In addition, we have experienced increased weekend 
programming and grass soccer field rentals this year over prior year.   
 
Central Park West- Revenues for this cost center are currently in line with budgeted expectations, however they are 
lower than prior year due to decreased shelter rental revenue and alcohol permit revenue.  YTD revenues total 
$16,036 and $3,180, respectively, whereas in the prior year such revenues were $27,198 and $4,790, respectively.  
A review of the underlying activity does show that we have experienced decreased rentals in the current year and we 
have also had an increase in the number of “unavailable” days due to internal utilization by the park district as well.  
 
Forest Glen Park- The unfavorable variance in expenditures is due to the extent and timing of tree removal services 
received.  In the current year, we have incurred $3,055 in costs for this activity during the month of June whereas in 
the prior year such costs were only $1,500 and were not incurred until August 2016 (4th month of the fiscal year).   
 
Chillem Park- Current year expenditures are ahead of target at 36% of budget and are also higher than prior year.  
This is due to a number of reasons including the incursion of $620 in tree maintenance costs, $450 in herbicide 
costs, and $563 in costs for flowers and topsoil.  Similar costs were incurred later in the year during 2016. 



 Page 2 

Professional Services- Although expenditures in this cost center are favorable against current year budget, they are 
higher than the previous year.  This increase is primarily due to legal fees incurred on our family locker renovation 
project and Central Park improvements project.  These capital-related fees will be transferred to the capital projects 
fund and such transfer will be reflected in next month’s financials. 

 
Recreation Fund 

 
YTD revenues in this fund are currently favorable against budget at 34.3% and expenditures are also favorable at 
18.7% of budget.  The $522,615 of YTD revenues over expenditures is in line with last year’s balance of $524,963.   
 
Property and Personal Property Replacement Taxes- As described on the previous page, YTD property tax activity is 
favorable due to the timing of the receipts and the YTD personal property replacement taxes are unfavorable due to 
the missing payment from the IDOR.  
  
Aquatic Center- Aquatics memberships that are processed along with fitness memberships (i.e. combination 
memberships) are initially recorded in the fitness center cost center.  On a quarterly basis, the Finance department 
re-allocates the aquatics membership revenue into this cost center.  In the prior year such re-allocation did not occur 
until September 2016 which is gives rise to a timing difference and the variance between the current year and prior 
year activity.  This variance should narrow in the coming months.    
 
Aquatic Recreation Programs- As anticipated, revenues are currently favorable against budget due to the seasonality 
of the underlying activity (program revenues are highest during the late spring and summer seasons).  However, 
when compared to the prior year, children’s aquatic program revenues have decreased from $111,611 in the prior 
year to $93,558; a decrease of approximately 16%.  Staff believes that this decrease is attributed to the 
establishment of private swim schools in the villages of Elmhurst and Burr Ridge that is diverting non-resident 
participants away from the Park District.         
 
Preschool Programs- Revenues are currently unfavorable against budget and prior year and is primarily due to a 
decrease in morning preschool activity.  This revenue has decreased from $25,605 in the prior year to $13,306 in the 
current year.  Finance is researching the cause for this decrease. 
 
Pioneer Programs- Although YTD revenues of $35,581 are on target with our annual budget, they are lower than 
prior year’s revenues of $76,511.  A detailed review of the underlying activity shows that multi-day trip revenue for 
the current year is at $1,262 whereas in the prior year such revenue was at $43,547.  This decrease is due to the 
fact that in the current year we are utilizing a 3rd party travel agency for our Cape Cod trip that is scheduled to occur 
in September 2017.  When this occurs, the travel agency collects and records all reservation revenue and incurs all 
expenditures and subsequently remits a “commission” to the Park District. On the other hand, prior year’s trip to 
Ontario and Quebec was administered in-house which resulted in the recognition of all related revenues and 
expenditures.  On the expenditure side, YTD expenditures are favorable against budget at only $19,802, or 12% of 
budget and are also significantly lower than prior year’s expenditures of $61,647 due to the reason described above.  
 
Special Events & Trips- The decrease in revenues, when compared to the prior year, is primarily due to lower 
participation rates for the Pink 5K race and Cori’s Triathlon.  The number of participants for the Pink 5K race 
decreased from 1,100 in 2016 to 953 in 2017.  The number of participants in the triathlon decreased from 102 in the 
prior year to 70 in the current year.  On the expenditure side, this year’s activity is unfavorable against budget and 
higher than the prior year due to the timing of our donation to the Hinsdale Hospital Foundation.  This year’s $10,135 
donation was carried-out in June whereas in the prior year such donation didn’t occur until later in the year 
(December).  In addition, expenditures related to our summer concert series have been recognized earlier in the year 
than they were last year. 
 
 
      
 



 Page 3 

Recreational Facilities Fund (Tennis Center) 
 

YTD revenues in this fund are currently in line with budget expectations at 27.3%.   YTD expenses are currently 
favorable against budget at 15%.  
 
Programs- Racquet Club- Overall revenues are currently higher than prior year by approximately $52,416 due to 
various reasons including increased resident membership activity, increased daily court usage, increased private 
lesson activity as well as increases in our group lesson camps.  The above activity has resulted in an increase in 
related expenses, however overall expenses have only increase approximately $12,031 over the prior year. 
 
Capital Outlay- YTD costs are related to the HVAC upgrade project.  This project is ongoing and there will be a 
significant increase in related costs during the coming months.    
 
 
 
FINANCE OPERATIONS: 
 

• Finance is working on updating various tables and graphs for inclusion in our Annual Report.  We are 
awaiting final audited financial numbers so we can finalize this material. 

• Finance has been researching the process for eliminating Nationwide Retirement Plans as an authorized 
financial services firm for our 457-deferred compensation plan.  Nationwide is one of four existing firms 
currently providing investment options.  For approximately one year now, finance has been working with 
them to facilitate their adoption of our existing 457 master plan document.  They have been unwilling to 
accept our master plan document without major revisions to language concerning the administration of the 
plan and numerous other provisions.  The other three firms have all accepted our master plan document. 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES: 
 

• Annual health insurance open enrollment has now been completed.  There were no increases to the health, 
dental, and vision premiums to be paid by the park district.  Covered employees will, however, experience 
increases in premiums ranging from 7% to 8.2%, depending on coverage type (PPO -vs- HMO).  

 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Memo 
To:  Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners  
From:  Dave Thommes, Director of Recreation & Facilities  
Date:  August 14, 2017 
Re:  Recreation & Facilities Report   

Recreation 
• July Playground Camp field trips included: Enchanted Castle, Rainbow Falls Waterpark, a Nature 

Museum and movie theater.  
• We hosted 3 of our 4 concerts in the park outside in July.  Bands included Shindig (Tribute to the 60’s), 

Rhythm Rockets (Vintage classics, high energy), Metro Star Orchestra (6-piece Orchestra famously 
known as the “little big band”) and Piano Man (Billy Joel & Elton John Tribute). 

• Twenty-Five Pioneers made pasta and had lunch at Eataly in Chicago on July 12th. 
• On the night of July 18, 35 Pioneers attended the Chicago Symphony Orchestra performance at 

Ravinia. 
• Twenty-One Pioneers had a great time cruising on Lake Geneva for the Mailboat Tour and had lunch at 

Popeyes on July 26th. 
• Teen Campers worked on various service projects in July including: Hinsdale Humane Society dog treats 

and dog wash, Gateway activities and swimming, Northern Illinois Food Bank and People’s Resource 
Center.  

Aquatics 
• The Stars Swim Team Season wrapped up on July 30th with their conference meet.  Many swimmers 

swam their personal best times during the meet.  Coaches are prepping for the fall season. 
• Staff worked with marketing to come up with a plan to push swimming lessons and swim team for the 

fall.  
• Staff prepared for the pool shut down and locker room construction.  Materials were purchased for 

repairs and quotes were received for contracted work that will need to be done. 
• The leisure pool heater, commercial freezer, and lap pool chemical box were all able to be repaired in 

house.  
• The lifeguards received a 5 – Star safety award on their Audit from StarGuard, which is the highest 

rating. 
Athletics 

• Revenue on the turf field was down this month due to the FieldTurf Remediation project. About half of 
the rentals that we had to move, went to the grass fields. The other half either changed their dates or 
asked for a refund. 

• The baseball fields are being heavily used this year compared to last year. Part of that is because of a 
new softball team that will be calling Oak Brook home next year has started their tryouts. The other 
part of that is increased use from Oak Brook Outlaws. 

• Our new in-house summer camps continue to be a hit in July! Through 3 camps, we have already 
almost doubled our revenue compared to the similar contracted camps last year. With contracted 
camps, we net about 30% of revenue. With our new camps, we are currently netting 78% of revenue. 



 Page 2 

This has resulted in over 4X more net income than we previously had with contracted camps. Again, we 
are only halfway through our in-house camps as well compared to all of the similar contracted ones we 
had last year. These numbers will keep increasing over the next month. 

• Bulls/Sox Camp was a success with 96 total campers participating. 
Fitness 

• Three Precor Upright bikes have been replaced in the fitness center with updated models. 
• New exercise bands have been placed in Studios A and B. 
• Registration has begun for new sessions of paid fitness classes: “Get Tough” and “PAIN” 
• Marketing has begun for the 2018 Pink 5K.  Registration will open October 1st to coincide with Breast 

Cancer Awareness Month. 
Tennis 

• The Tennis Center hosted the Oak Brook Summer II Junior Open tournament with 45 participants July 
10 – 12th. 

• The Oak Brook Tennis Center 10 & Under and 14 & Under Jr. Tennis Teams represented the Chicago 
District at the Midwest Sectional Championship in Indianapolis July 29th and 30th. The 10 & Under Jr. 
Tennis Team won 1st place again. 

Facilities 
 

July-17 
  Retained Total Rate 

Aquatic 181 182 99.5% 

Aqua/Ten 2 2 100.0% 

Fitness 367 375 97.9% 

Fit/Aqua 172 173 99.4% 

Fit/Ten 30 30 100.0% 

Premiere 36 36 100.0% 

        

Yearly Total 788 798 98.7% 

EFT Aqua 502 733 68.5% 
EFT 

Aqua/Ten 26 26 100.0% 

EFT Fitness 1020 1036 98.5% 

EFT Fit/Aqua 583 595 98.0% 

EFT Fit/Ten 62 62 100.0% 
EFT 

Premiere 114 116 98.3% 

        

Yearly & EFT 3095 3366 91.9% 
 
We gained 67 new members in July. 
 
 
 



Oak Brook Park District
Aquatic Center

Swim Lesson and Swim Team Statistics

Summer Fall Wint/Spr Total
2008/2009 1061 986 1463 3510
2009/2010 1376 1146 2237 4759
2010/2011 1552 1404 2457 5413
2011/2012 1632 1534 2481 5647
2012/2013 1733 1673 2680 6086
2013/2014* 1826 1687 2354 5867
2014/2015 2375 1545 2181 6101
2015/2016 2202 1562 2457 6221
2016/17 1995 1451 2201 5647
2017/18 1721

Summer Fall/Winter Spring 
2007/2008 108 76
2008/2009 23 33 11
2009/2010 20 57 29
2010/2011 41 79 36
2011/2012 62 99 50
2012/2013 59 131 33
2013/2014 69 101 55
2014/2015 60 100 39
2015/2016 34 56 27
2016/17 32 51 21
2017/18 25

Swim Lesson Statistics

*2014/15 Increase in kids who signed up for full season right away meant less spots available for spring.  

Swim Team Statistics

0
1000
2000
3000
4000
5000
6000
7000

2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014* 2014/2015 2015/2016

Swim Lesson Statistics

Swim Lesson Statistics Summer Swim Lesson Statistics Fall

Swim Lesson Statistics Wint/Spr Swim Lesson Statistics Total



Oak Brook Park District
Aquatic Center

Aquatic Party Statistics

Total # Parties Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total
Splash Birthday 19 32 27 30 23 28 20 179

Super Splash Birthday 11 6 11 12 8 12 10 70
Group  (by day) 8 4 7 6 2 2 3 32

Private (indoors only) 6 7 7 3 2 2 0 27
Private (indoor/outdoor combo) 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3

Splash Island Birthday 0 0 0 0 0 2 6 8
Camp Rentals 1 0 3 0 2 11 18 35

Lane Rental (lap only) 0 0 0 1 8 0 26 35
Scout 1 3 4 3 2 3 12 28

Total # Parties 46 52 59 55 47 60 98 0 0 0 0 0 417

2016 65 60 61 80 84 90 80 68 34 49 44 46 761
2015 52 58 71 51 65 77 82 47 37 44 49 42 675
2014 51 48 77 58 69 66 46 45 48 51 58 50 667
2013 53 65 73 81 70 61 34 34 28 46 61 39 645
2012 40 55 43 65 43 59 46 29 33 44 64 41 562
2011 39 42 51 71 51 51 30 25 19 30 35 36 480
2010 37 55 57 39 55 40 31 28 21 31 38 37 469
2009 40 53 53 43 45 45 35 35 18 28 37 61 493
2008 48 62 73 78 53 44 37 39 35 30 43 31 573

2017 Aquatic Party Statistics



Oak Brook Park District
Athletic Fields Rental Report

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 16/17 YTD 15/16 Actual

Hours 149 116 86 130 165 190 97 28 5 26 108 135 1,233 1,113
Revenue $11,855 $7,598 $3,236 $9,478 $8,602 $10,652 $5,313 $478 $500 $2,600 $8,334 $10,115 $78,758 $78,489

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 16/17 YTD 15/16 Actual

Hours 207 105 138 177 191 196 0 0 0 0 0 93 1,106 1,328
Revenue $2,500 $2,200 $600 $650 $1,550 $1,075 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,275 $9,850 $14,981

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 16/17 YTD 15/16 Actual

Hours 118 118 147 70 222 246 9 0 0 0 0 57 987 1,179
Revenue $3,123 $1,924 $735 $960 $4,062 $3,422 $912 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,508 $16,645 $27,914

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 17/18 YTD 16/17 YTD

Hours 177 103 109 389 351
Revenue $13,262 $5,222 $2,103 $20,587 $22,689

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 17/18 YTD 16/17 YTD

Hours 159 140 133 432 450
Revenue $4,203 $2,248 $833 $7,283 $5,300

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 17/18 YTD 16/17 YTD

Hours 88 148 151 387 383
Revenue $2,778 $4,157 $1,284 $8,218 $5,782

Athletic Field Usage 2015/2016 Fiscal Year Evergreen Bank Group Athletic Field

Athletic Field Usage 2015/2016 Fiscal Year Natural Grass Soccer Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2015/2016 Fiscal Year Baseball Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2016/2017 Fiscal Year Evergreen Bank Group Athletic Field

Athletic Field Usage 2016/2017 Fiscal Year Natural Grass Soccer Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2016/2017 Fiscal Year Baseball Fields



Oak Brook Park District
Facility Statistics and Data

January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTAL
2016 45,124 40,601 32,809 32,567 30,733 33,211 23,428 17,907 17,578 23,112 31,682 37,338 366,090

Weekday Avg. 1,475 1,387 1,107 1,077 1,083 1,240 854 646 631 814 1,014 1,267 1,050
Weekend Avg. 1,419 1,436 1,051 973 768 743 634 382 541 601 1,039 1,183 898

2017 43,582 37,431 45,170 31,760 31,932 35,136 33,194 258,205
Weekday Avg. 1,355 1,252 1,597 1,107 1,069 1,342 1,165 1,270
Weekend Avg. 1,531 1,551 1,054 1,071 736 700 944 1,084

January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTAL
2016 268 258 227 220 231 209 160 203 177 211 224 248 2,636

Gym Rentals 182 175 131 127 130 120 81 114 102 139 137 164 1,602
Room Rentals 79 83 86 81 88 64 56 68 61 70 75 74 885
CPW Rentals 9 8 10 12 13 25 23 21 14 2 12 10 159
CPW Revenue $2,763 $3,325 $3,258 $4,840 $4,713 $10,105 $9,535 $6,335 $5,650 $593 $3,823 $4,325 $59,263

2017 231 198 224 200 147 158 154 1,312
Gym Rentals 164 132 136 112 82 81 81 788

Room Rentals 57 56 69 77 55 56 57 427
CPW Rentals 10 10 19 11 10 21 16 97
CPW Revenue $3,745 $3,360 $6,413 $4,330 $2,395 $9,430 $7,143 $36,815

January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTAL
2016 2 3 3 7 6 8 1 2 3 5 1 1 42

2017 4 2 4 7 5 4 9 35

Theme Parties

 Facility Usage

Facility Rentals



Oak Brook Park District 
Family Recreation Center 
Membership Usage Data

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2014 2,231 2,257 2,292 2,309 2,323 2,294 2,280 2,316 2,291 2,218 2,307 2,282
Resident 70% 70% 70% 70% 70% 70% 70% 69% 69% 69% 69% 67%

Non Resident 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 31% 31% 31% 31% 33%
EFT 1,929 1,947 1,979 2,030 1,972 1,954 1,906 1,965 1,981 1,932 1,961 2,035

2015 2,368 2,412 2,467 2,489 2,520 2,572 2,628 2,464 2,636 2,564 2,534 3,299
Resident 67% 67% 67% 67% 67% 66% 66% 64% 65% 65% 63% 54%

Non Resident 33% 33% 33% 33% 33% 34% 34% 36% 35% 35% 37% 46%
EFT 2,123 2,141 2,195 2,192 2,149 2,243 2,207 2,263 2,318 2,277 2,556 2,492

2016 3,524 3,456 3,704 3,623 4,053 4,204 4,333 4,220 3,603 3,571 3,600 3,757
Resident 54% 53% 54% 56% 54% 52% 52% 52% 56% 55% 57% 56%

Non Resident 46% 47% 46% 44% 46% 48% 48% 48% 44% 45% 43% 44%
EFT 2,216 2,674 2,188 2,170 2,205 2,177 2,212 2,207 2,207 2,197 2,209 2,329

2017 3,901 3,715 3,686 3,848 4,150 4,230 4,283
Resident 55% 53% 53% 54% 53% 52% 52%

Non Resident 45% 47% 47% 46% 47% 48% 48%
EFT 2,481 2,495 2,514 2,538 2,499 2,499 2,511

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2014 8,783 9,082 9,826 9,290 8,291 8,440 7,960 7,597 7,897 8,805 8,625 8,403

2015 10,055 8,974 9,813 8,938 8,713 9,082 8,655 8,545 7,911 8,612 8,261** 10,880

2016 13,418 13,216 12,915 12,360 11,828 11,750 11,538 10,900 9,097 10,625 10,233 10,034

2017 12,631 11,559 12,351 11,245 14,711 16,596 17,065

*Members

Usage



 
 
 
 

Memo 
To:  Board of Commissioners  
From:  Bob Johnson, Director of Parks and Planning  
Date:  August 14, 2017 
Re:  Board Report  

 

 

• Wight and Company has developed a site design for the universal playground area at Central Park. The plan 
utilizes existing grades to maximize circulation routes and play value, while minimizing earthwork. Staff is 
working with Wight and Unlimited Play to finalize the equipment design for the space. 

• The Park District has applied for an Environmental Protection Agency grant by combining the replacement of 
the eastern gabion weir in Ginger Creek, and elements of the Central Park improvements project, specifically 
a permeable paver parking lot. If awarded, the grant covers up to 60% of the cost of projects which are 
identified to improve water quality.  

• Staff has completed the repairs and painting to the barn at the Dean Nature Sanctuary.  Security cameras have 
been ordered and staff will install them along with some lighting around the barn.  

• The synthetic soccer field repair/remediation process is complete. The warranty work involved removing all 
the rubber in-fill material and then injecting adhesive through the turf carpet.  The in-fill was then replaced 
and groomed.   

• The tennis back boards at Chillem, Forest Glen, and Saddle Brook Parks have been repaired and painted.  

• 55 viable Ash trees will be treated to prevent infestation of the Emerald Ash Borer insect (EAB) at Central Park.  
The product lasts for two years and the previous treatments took place in 2015.  Under proper care, the trees 
are able to survive the plight of EAB. The large size of the trees and their aesthetic value makes treatment 
worthwhile.  

 







RESOLUTION NO.  R17-0821 
 

A RESOLUTION REGARDING THE REVIEW 
OF MINUTES FOR CLOSED MEETINGS 

FROM JANUARY, 1989 THROUGH MARCH 20, 2017 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, in compliance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120/1 et seq. (the “Act”), 
the Oak Brook Park District Board of Park Commissioners (the "Board") has completed its semi-annual 
review of the minutes of all closed meetings which remain on file and closed to public view; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the need for confidentiality still exists as to all of those 
minutes that were reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act requires that the Board make a public recital of its findings.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Oak Brook Park District Board of Park 
Commissioners, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  The Board has determined that a need for confidentiality still exists as to the closed 
meeting minutes reviewed.  The closed meeting minutes reviewed will therefore remain closed to the public 
until the Board determines that the need for confidentiality no longer exists. 
 
 Section 2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval as required by law.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 21st DAY OF AUGUST, 2017. 
 
AYES: ______________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: ______________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ____________________________________________ 
      
       __________________________________ 
       Sharon Knitter, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Laure Kosey, Secretary       





 1 

 ORDINANCE NO. 17-0822 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DESTRUCTION OF THE  

VERBATIM RECORD OF CERTAIN CLOSED MEETINGS  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 WHEREAS, the Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1, et seq.) (the "Act") requires 
governmental bodies to keep a verbatim record of closed meetings by audio or video tape; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oak Brook Park District Board of Park Commissioners (the "Board") has 

complied with such requirement by providing for the Secretary of the Board to keep a verbatim 
record of all closed meetings by audio tape; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Act also permits governmental bodies to destroy the verbatim record of 

closed meetings, no less than eighteen (18) months after the completion of the meeting recorded, 
without notification to or approval of a records commission or the State Archivist under the Local 
Records Act, but only after: i) the public body approves the destruction of a particular recording; 
and ii) the public body approves written minutes that meet the requirements of the Act for the 
closed meeting recorded; and 

 
WHEREAS, at least eighteen (18) months have passed since the completion of certain 

closed meetings of the Board that are identified in Section 1 of this Ordinance, and the Board has 
approved written minutes for each of the such closed meetings; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary and desirable to order the 

destruction of the verbatim record of the closed meetings identified in Section 1 of this Ordinance; 
and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Oak Brook Park District, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Board hereby finds that at least eighteen (18) months have passed since 
the completion of the following closed meetings of the Board, and that the Board has approved 
written minutes for such closed meetings: 
 

  January 18, 2016 
  February 15, 2016 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby orders the destruction of the entire verbatim record, in 

the form of audio tapes, of the closed meetings identified in Section 1 of this Ordinance, and the 
Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to destroy said audio tapes in a suitable manner. 
 

Section 3. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with the provisions of this 
Resolution are hereby repealed.  

 
 Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval as provided by law. 



 2 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED This 21th Day of August, 2017. 
 
 
AYES:  _______________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: _______________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: _____________________________________________ 
 
 
           __________________________________ 
      President Sharon Knitter 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Laure Kosey, Secretary 





 

1 
 

GATEWAY SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION 

FIFTH AMENDED ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT 

These Fifth Amended Articles of Agreement (hereinafter the “Agreement”) dated as of January 

14, 2013, and updated without substantial change on July 13, 2017 are entered into by and between 

certain duly organized and operating park districts and municipalities under the provisions of Acts of the 

General Assembly of the State of Illinois, including the Park District Code, Illinois Municipal Code, the 

Illinois Constitution and the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, respectively, which provisions 

allow intergovernmental agency cooperation for the purpose of providing joint recreational programs 

for persons with mental and physical disabilities. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the public agencies which are parties to this Agreement (“Members”) desire to 

provide recreational programs for persons within their communities with mental and physical disabilities 

and to share the expenses of such programs on a cooperative basis; and 

WHEREAS, the Fifth Amended Articles of Agreement amends and supersedes all prior Articles of 

Agreement, including the original Articles of Agreement dated September 1, 1989 and the First, Second, 

Third, and Fourth Amended Articles of Agreement, by and between the Members; and 

WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement are authorized to enter into this Agreement by 

applicable laws of the State of Illinois ruled by their respective corporate authorities.  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Name. For the purpose of the Agreement, the Members shall be known collectively as the  

Gateway Special Recreation Association (“Gateway SRA”). 

2. Purpose. The purpose of Gateway SRA is to provide recreational programs for persons with  

mental and physical disabilities, whether temporary or permanent in nature. 

3. Members. The Members of Gateway SRA are: 
 
Burr Ridge Park District   City of Countryside 
Elmhurst Park District   Oak Brook Park District 
Pleasant Dale Park District   Village of Hinsdale 
Westchester Park District   Village of Willowbrook 
York Center Park District 

 Other agencies may be admitted as Members upon obtaining the consents of a majority of then 

current Members and approval and execution of these Fifth Amended Articles of Agreement and upon 



 

2 
 

GATEWAY SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION 

such other terms and conditions as may be from time to time determined by the Board of Trustees of 

the Gateway SRA (herein after referred to as “Board”). 

4. Board, Officers, and By-laws. Gateway SRA shall have a Board of Trustees and a Chairman,  

Secretary, and Treasurer who shall be members of that Board and elected by that Board. The Board and 

officers shall act only in accordance with and exercise those powers and duties as provided by law or in 

the By-laws of Gateway SRA approved by the Trustees as provided therein. The By-laws in effect at the 

time of approval of this Fifth Amended Agreement are attached hereto and made a part hereof as 

Exhibit A. 

5. Consent of Member. Any consent or approval required of a Member under this Agreement  

shall be given by that Member in accordance with the laws made and provided for that particular 

Member in effect at the time such consent or approval is authorized.  

6. Agreement to Make Resources Available. Each Member agrees to reasonably make available  

to Gateway SRA its recreation areas, equipment, and transportation facilities in recognition that 

Gateway SRA’s programs are an integral part of each Member’s recreational programs. It is the intent of 

the Members that they shall each provide resources and assistance, such as, but not necessarily limited 

to, staff, time, and equipment as may be reasonably considered necessary to the proper functioning of 

Gateway’s programs. The degree to which each Member contributes resources and assistance shall be 

determined by it, giving due consideration to the needs of its own programs and the needs of Gateway, 

and no Member shall be required to equalize its expenditure of resources and assistance with that of 

any other Member. Reimbursement of costs in this regard shall be as follows: 

a. Each Member shall be entitled to full reimbursement for any extraordinary cost incurred as 

a result of Gateway SRA’s use of said recreation areas, equipment, and transportation 

facilities. In any case, the Board shall determine whether an expenditure is extraordinary for 

the purposes hereof. 

b. When a resident of a Member (the “Home Member”) registers for a recreation program of 

another Member (the “Host Member”), the Home Member shall reimburse the Host 

Member for its direct program cost in accommodating the special needs of such resident 

(i.e. staffing, adaptive equipment, and the like) at the market rates for such services as 

agreed by the Home and Host Members. The Host Member and the Home Member shall 

cooperate in determining an appropriate method and schedule for billing, in consideration 



 

3 
 

GATEWAY SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION 

of case-by-case factors, including but not limited to the length and frequency of the 

program, and the need for services. Host Members shall not seek reimbursement for any 

indirect costs associated with assessment, evaluation, training, and consulting with a 

resident of a Home Member or such resident’s family. The registration requirements of a 

Host Member or such resident’s family. The registration requirements of a Host Member 

shall apply to a resident of any Home Member, including but not limited to any resident 

priority registration period and non-resident fees. Each Host Member may implement and 

keep in place its own method for receipt of inclusion requests and implementation of 

necessary accommodations. If a resident of a Home Member registers for a recreation 

program of a Host Member, the Host Member shall contact the Home Member to jointly 

coordinate the accommodation and, on a case-by-case basis, to determine and implement 

the necessary accommodations. Each Member shall use its best efforts to agree on the 

appropriate actions and services required to accommodate such resident. If no concurrence 

can be reached by the two Members on any of these issues, the Board of Trustees shall 

resolve any dispute under this Section and its decision is final.   
 

7. Dismissal from Membership. If any Member (a) refuses to provide use of its facilities for  

Gateway SRA programs, upon reasonable request by Gateway SRA; (b) fails to make any payment as 

required herein; or (c) is in default of any other provisions of this Agreement or the By-laws or any rule 

promulgated by the Board, that Member may be declared by the Board to be dismissed from 

membership in Gateway SRA. No Member may be dismissed, however, except in accordance with the 

procedures here in below. The Board shall give at least ten (10) days’ written notice to the Member to 

be dismissed, which notice shall specify the ground or grounds for such declaration of dismissal and shall 

set a date, time, and place for a hearing before the Board as to the proposed declaration of dismissal. 

The allegedly defaulting Member shall be permitted to appear at said hearing and submit testimony and 

evidence as to why it should not be dismissed from membership in Gateway SRA. After conclusion of 

said hearing and upon approval of such dismissal duly passed by the Board on an affirmative vote of at 

least 2/3rds of the duly appointed and serving Trustees, the defaulting Member shall be dismissed from 

membership in Gateway SRA. The reasons for such dismissal shall be set forth in the action of the Board 

approving the dismissal. Such dismissal shall become effective as determined by the Board unless a 

different effective date shall be mutually agreed to by Gateway SRA and the Member. Unless otherwise 

agreed in writing by Gateway SRA such withdrawing Member shall continue to be responsible for its 



 

4 
 

GATEWAY SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION 

share of any and all liabilities incurred by Gateway SRA until the end of the current fiscal year, as if still a 

Member. 

 Upon withdrawal by a Member under this Agreement, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, such 

withdrawing Member shall have no further claim, right, or interest whatsoever to or in any of the assets, 

properties or policies of Gateway SRA. 

8. Fees. The Board may establish from time to time fees for individuals who are participating in  

Gateway SRA programs. 

9. Additional Funding. The Board shall endeavor to obtain funds from other organizations, to  

assist in delivering the best possible service to the participants within Gateway SRA at the lowest 

possible cost to the Members. 

10. Certificate of Population. Each Member shall provide the Board, by January 1st of each year,  

a certification of its latest recorded population. Such certification shall be based upon latest U.S. Census 

figures, or such other census (such as for Motor Fuel Tax purposes) as the Board may accept. The Board 

may, but shall not be obligated to, accept other than U.S. census figures. Acceptance of such 

certification shall be by majority vote of the Trustees. 

11. Annual Assessment. Each Member shall pay to Gateway SRA an annual assessment based  

upon the following formula: 

a. The total certified population of all Members shall be added together to determine the total 

population of Gateway SRA, using for this purpose the official certifications as accepted by 

the Board. 

b. The total budgeted cost of Gateway SRA, minus all other anticipated revenues other than 

taxation, shall then be divided by the total population, to determine an estimated per capita 

rate. Such budget shall be approved by a 2/3rds vote of the Trustees present and voting at 

the Board’s May meeting. The maximum assessment for each Member for the next ensuing 

fiscal year shall be established at this time, except as otherwise provided in Section 12.b. 

herein. 

c. This per capita rate shall then be multiplied by the certified population of each Member to 

determine the annual assessment for each Member. 

d. No Member’s annual assessment shall exceed that otherwise allowed by applicable law. 



 

5 
 

GATEWAY SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION 

Each Member shall pay one-half of its annual assessment on or before July 1st of the fiscal year 

for which the assessment is made; the balance shall be paid on or before October 1st of the 

same year. 

12. Withdrawal from Agreement. 

a. Voluntary Withdrawal. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, any Member may 

voluntarily withdraw from the Agreement by so notifying the Board of its decision in writing 

by no later than July 1st and in such event, said voluntarily withdrawal shall be effective as of 

midnight on August 31, of the following fiscal year (15 months from withdrawal deadline 

date). The Member shall pay two months of annual contributions prorated on the final year 

of participation. Any and all liability and privileges of the withdrawing Member shall cease as 

of the Withdrawal Date, except for liabilities incurred by Gateway SRA and not fully repaid 

prior to the Withdrawal Date. The withdrawn Member shall continue to be liable for its 

share of Gateway’s liabilities as if still a Member, until such a time as those liabilities are 

settled or otherwise abated. 

b. Default Payment.  From and after the Withdrawal Date of any Member, whether voluntarily 

and involuntarily, the other remaining Members shall share on a per capita basis the costs 

and liabilities as if the withdrawn Member had not been a party to this Agreement.  

13. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of Gateway SRA shall begin July 1st and end June 30th. 

14. Indemnification. Each Member agrees to indemnify and defend every other Member with  

respect to any and all claims and liabilities for bodily injury to or death of one or more persons and/or 

property damage which may arise as a result of the acts or omissions of the indemnifying Member or its 

agents or employees in performing this Agreement or in any way related to the Gateway SRA. Each 

Member shall provide to every other Member a certificate of insurance or proof of self-insurance 

coverage, in an amount of not less than the combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 as evidence of its 

ability to meet the obligation established in this paragraph. 

15. Dissolution. In the event that, at any time, there are fewer than two (2) Members to the  

Agreement, or in the event that the Board, by unanimous vote of all Board Members, approves 

dissolution of Gateway SRA, then this Agreement shall be deemed terminated and the assets of 

Gateway SRA shall be distributed to the Members hereunder immediately prior to such termination 

occurring. Such distribution to be in accordance with the same per capita formula as determined for the 

annual assessment. In no event, however, shall any such distribution of assets be made until all of the 



 

6 
 

GATEWAY SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION 

debts and liabilities of Gateway SRA shall first be paid, satisfied or discharged or adequate provision 

therefore is made. 

16. Amendments. The terms of this Agreement may be altered, amended or repealed, or a new  

Agreement may be adopted, by the consent and approval of 2/3rds of all the Members. Separate 

signature pages for each Member are attached and are all are incorporated as a part hereof. This 

Agreement will become effective as of the date of the fifth (5) Member’s execution of its signature page 

and dated as such hereinabove.  

17. Commencement and Term.  This Agreement shall be effective December 13, 2012 and shall  

Continue until dissolution occurs under the provisions of paragraph 15 hereof. 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Member has caused these Fifth Amended Articles of 

Agreement to be executed by it duly authorized officers pursuant to an action adopted by its Corporate 

Authorities in accordance with applicable law. 

 

_________________________________________ 

Park District or Municipality 

 

By:______________________________________ 

                   President or Mayor 

 

_________________________________________ 

                      Attest 

 

_________________________________________ 

                      Date 

 

 

                                 Corporate Seal 





Submitted for Board Review: August 21, 2017 

6.15  Video and Electronic Surveillance Policy and Procedure 

Purpose and Principles 

The Purpose of this policy is to regulate the use of security cameras on Oak Brook Park District (the 

“District”) property. 

The principles of this policy: 

1. Enhance the health and safety of the District attendees and protect District property. 
2. Respect the privacy of members of the District and guests. 
3. Provide transparency in the use of video camera technology towards increasing safety on District 
property. 
 
Security cameras will be used in a professional and ethical manner in accordance with District policy and 
local, state, and federal laws and regulations. 
 
Definitions: 

As used within this policy, the following terms are defined as follows: 

Security Camera: a camera used for monitoring or recording public area for the purposes of enhancing 

public safety, monitoring restricted areas or equipment, to discourage theft and other criminal activities, 

and for preventing, investigating, and resolving incidents.  The most common security cameras rely on 

closed circuit television. 

Security Camera Monitoring: the real-time review or watching of security camera feeds. 
Security Camera Recording: a digital or analog recording of the feed from a security camera. 
Security Camera Systems:  any electronic service, software, or hardware directly supporting or 
deploying a security camera. 
 
Responsibility and Authority 

Responsibility for the oversight of park district security cameras is assigned to the Executive Director and 

his/her designees. This includes: 

1. Creation, maintenance, and review of the District’s strategy for the procurement, deployment 

and use of security cameras in accordance to the park district’s policy. 

2. Designation of the standard security camera system or service. 

3. Authorizing the placement of all security cameras 

4. Authorizing the purchasing of any new security camera systems in accordance with the District’s 

approved budget. 

5. Reviewing existing security camera systems and installations and determining required changes. 

6. Creating and approving campus standards for security cameras and their use. 

7. Creating and approving the procedures for the use of security cameras. 

  



Submitted for Board Review: August 21, 2017 

Security Camera Standards and Procedures 

1. Security Camera Placement 

a. The Executive Director and administrative staff may establish temporary or permanent 

security cameras in public areas of the District’s facilities and parks. 

b. Audio recordings are prohibited. 

c. Security Cameras may not be used in private areas of the park district’s facilities 

pursuant to law including the Illinois Criminal Code or consent. Private areas include 

bathrooms, shower areas, locker and changing rooms. 

d. To the maximum extent possible, security cameras shall not be directed at the windows 

of any private building not on District property. 

2. Security Camera Monitoring and Review 

a. Review of Security Camera Recordings 

i. The Oak Brook Police Department may monitor and review security camera 

feeds and recordings as needed to support investigations and to enhance public 

safety. 

ii. With the approval of the Executive Director, the Information Technology staff, 

or other staff designated by the Executive Director may review security camera 

recordings for the purpose of public safety on the park district’s property. 

b. Monitoring of Security Camera Feeds 

i. Certain staff periodically monitor security camera line feeds for purposes of 

public safety. 

ii. Monitoring individuals based on characteristics of race, gender, ethnicity, sexual 

orientation, disability, or other protected classification is prohibited. 

3. Notification Requirements 

All locations with security cameras will have signs displayed that provide reasonable notification 

of the presence of security cameras.  At a minimum, this must include primary building 

entrances. All proposals for the deployment of security cameras will include proposed sites for 

the placement or notification signs and the text on the signs shall be subject to the review and 

approval of the Executive Director. 

4. Use of Recordings 

Security camera recordings are used for the purposes described in the definition of a security 

camera.  The images produced by security camera system shall only be used for: 

a. The identification of a person or persons responsible for park district policy violations, 

criminal activity or actions considered disruptive to normal park district operations.  

b. To assist law enforcement agencies in accordance with applicable municipal, state and 

federal laws.  

c. To provide a video record of incidents that can be retained and reviewed as long as 

considered necessary by the Executive Director or other administrative staff. 

d. Surveillance cameras are not continuously monitored and are for security purposes 

only. 

 



Submitted for Board Review: August 21, 2017 

5. Protection, Disclosure/Security and Retention of Security Camera Recordings 

a. Any security camera recordings not in use shall be securely stored.  

b. To the best of its ability the District shall retain Security Camera Recordings in 

accordance with the following chart unless deemed necessary for a longer retention 

period which is approved by the Executive Director.  Recordings are limited to the 

storage available on the Security Camera System. When the cameras detect an 

increased amount of motion due to weather or other events, the systems’ hard drives 

can be consumed faster, which can cause less than the specified length of time the 

recordings are available.  In addition, the system doesn’t have backup power so data is 

not recorded when loss of power is experienced. 

Location Retention Time Period 

Family Recreation Center 30 days 

Tennis Center 30 days 

Central Park West 30 Days 

Family Recreation Center Parking Lot 5 days 

Dean Nature Sanctuary 5 days 

 

c. Any security camera recording that has been used for the purpose of this policy shall be 

dated and retained. 

d. Requests for viewing security camera recordings must be made in writing to the 

Executive Director or the Freedom of Information Act Officer.  If the request is granted, 

the security camera footage to be viewed will be prepared in accordance with the 

Freedom of Information Act to prevent the invasion of privacy and to protect the 

identity of non-involved individuals and children under the age of18.  

i. The viewing of the security camera recordings must occur in the presence of the 

Executive Director or other designated employee.  Under no circumstance will 

the District’s video recordings be duplicated and/or removed from District 

premises unless in accordance with a court order and/or subpoena. 

e. The Executive Director must authorize access to all security camera recordings. 

 

6. Destruction or Tampering with Video Surveillance Technology. 

Any person who tampers with or destroys a video surveillance camera or any part of the video 

surveillance system will be subject to appropriate administrative and/or disciplinary action, as 

well as possible criminal charges. 





1 
 

4.8  FUND BALANCE/NET ASSETSPOSITION POLICY 
 

PURPOSE 
 
A Fund Balance/Net AssetsPosition Policy establishes a minimum level that the projected end-of-
year fund balance/net assetsposition must meet, as a result of the constraints imposed upon the 
resources reported by the governmental and proprietary funds.  This policy is being established 
to provide financial stability, cash flow for operations, and the assurance that the District will be 
able to respond to emergencies with fiscal strength. More detailed fund balance financial 
reporting and the increased disclosures will aid the user of the financial statements in 
understanding the availability of resources. 
 
It is the District’s philosophy to support long-term financial strategies, where fiscal sustainability 
is its first priority, while also building funds for future growth. It is essential to maintain adequate 
levels of fund balance/net assetsposition to mitigate current and future risks and to ensure tax 
rates. Fund balance/net assetposition levels are also a crucial consideration in long-term financial 
planning. Credit rating agencies carefully monitor levels of fund balance/net assetsposition and 
any unassigned fund balance in the General Fund to evaluate the District’s continued 
creditworthiness.   
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
District Governmental Funds 
 
The fund balance will be composed of three primary categories: 
 

1) Nonspendable Fund Balance – portion of the District  Governmental Funds’ fund 
balance that is not available to be spent, either in the short-term or long-term, or 
because of legal restrictions (e.g., inventories, prepaid items, land held for resale and 
endowments). 
 

2) Restricted Fund Balance – portion of a District Governmental Funds’ fund balance that 
is subject to external enforceable legal restrictions (e.g., grantor, contributor and 
property tax levies). 

 
3) Unrestricted Fund Balance – is made up of three components: 
 

A) Committed Fund Balance – the portion of the District Governmental Funds’ 
fund balance with self-imposed constraints or limitations that have been placed 
at the highest level of decision making through formal Board action. The same 
action is required to remove the commitment of a fund balance. 
 
 
 



2 
 

DEFINITIONS - CONTINUED 
 
B) Assigned Fund Balance – the portion of the District  Governmental Funds’ fund 
balance for which an intended use of resources has been denoted, but with no 
formal Board action. 
 
C) Unassigned Fund Balance – available expendable financial resources in the 
District’s Governmental  Funds that are not the object of any tentative 
management plan. 
 

Some funds are funded by a variety of resources, including both restricted and unrestricted 
(committed, assigned and unassigned) sources. The District assumes that the order of spending 
the District’s Governmental  fund balance is as follows: restricted, committed, assigned, 
unassigned. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal service funds. The net assets position will be 
composed of three primary categories: 
 

1) Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt – portion of a proprietary fund’s net 
assets position that reflects the fund’s net investment in capital assets less any 
amount of outstanding debt related to the purchase/acquisition of said capital assets. 
Related debt, for this purpose, includes the outstanding balances of any bonds, 
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of capital assets of the District. 
 

2) Restricted Net Assets Position– portion of a proprietary fund’s net assets Position that 
are subject to external enforceable legal restrictions (e.g., grantor, contributor and 
bond covenants). 

 
3) Unrestricted Net Assets Position– portion of a proprietary fund’s net assets position 

that is neither restricted nor invested in capital assets (net of related debt). 
 
AUTHORITY 
 
District Governmental Funds 
 
Committed Fund Balance – A self-imposed constraint on spending the fund balance must be 
approved by ordinance or resolution of the Board. Any modifications or removal of the self-
imposed constraint must use the same action used to commit the fund balance. Formal action to 
commit fund balance must occur before the end of the fiscal year. The dollar amount of the 
commitment can be determined after year end.  
 



3 
 

AUTHORITY - CONTINUED 
 
Assigned Fund Balance – A self-imposed constraint on spending the fund balance based on the 
District’s intent to use fund balance for a specific purpose. The authority may be delegated to 
members of the management team by the Board. 
 
MINIMUM UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE LEVELS 
 
District Governmental Funds 
 

General Fund  
Purpose – Is a major fund and the general operating fund of the District. It is used 
to account for all activities that are not accounted for in another fund. 
 
Fund Balance – Unrestricted fund balance targets should represent no less than 
three months and no more than six months of operating expenditures.  Fund 
balances are to be maintained at levels that will not subject the district to tax 
objections.  Balances above the maximum are transferred to other funds or to 
capital projects at the Board’s discretion. 
 

 Recreation Fund 
Purpose – Established to account for financial resources used for planning, 
establishing and maintaining recreational programs. 
 
Financing – The District extends a property tax levy, receives personal property 
replacement taxes and generates revenues from user fees. 
 
Fund Balance – Unrestricted fund balance targets should represent no less than 
three months and no more than six months of expenditures.  Fund balances are 
to be maintained at levels that will not subject the district to tax objections.  
Balances above the maximum are transferred to other funds or to capital projects 
at the Board’s discretion. 

 
Debt Service Fund 

Purpose – Established to account for financial resources that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. 
 
Financing – The municipality  District levies an amount or transfers in an amount 
close to the principal and interest that is anticipated to be paid.  
 
Fund Balance –Derived from property taxes; therefore, legally restricted.  Any 
fund balance accumulation should be a maximum of the amount of the next 
principal and interest payment due. 
 



4 
 

MINIMUM UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE LEVELS – CONTINUED 
 
Capital Projects Fund 

Purpose - Established to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the 
acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets, excluding 
those types of capital related outflows financed by proprietary funds. 
 
Financing – Debt financing, grants, or interfund transfers are used to finance 
projects. 
 
Fund Balance – Considered segregated for maintenance, construction and/or 
development; therefore, considered committed, restricted, or assigned 
depending on the intended source/use of the funds.  Increases and decreases in 
fund balance are associated with the specific projects planned.  Therefore, no 
specific target is established for this fund. 

 
IMRF Fund 

Purpose – Established to account for financial resources that are restricted to 
expenditure for the District’s share of pension contributions to the Illinois 
Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF). 
 
Financing – The District extends a property tax levy in an amount approximating 
the annual appropriation for IMRF contributions. 
 
Fund Balance – Derived from property taxes and personal property replacement 
taxes; therefore, legally restricted.  Any fund balance accumulation should 
represent no less than three months and no more than six months of 
expenditures.  

 
Social Security Fund 

Purpose – Established to account for financial resources that are restricted to 
expenditure for the District’s share of Social Security and Medicare tax 
contributions. 
 
Financing – The District extends a property tax levy in an amount approximating 
the annual appropriation for Social Security and Medicare tax expenditures. 
 
Fund Balance – Derived from property taxes and personal property replacement 
taxes; therefore, legally restricted.  Any fund balance accumulation should 
represent no less than three months and no more than six months of 
expenditures. 

 
 



5 
 

MINIMUM UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE LEVELS – CONTINUED 
 
Audit Fund 

Purpose – Established to account for financial resources that are restricted to 
expenditure for the annual financial statement audit. 
 
Financing – The District extends a property tax levy in an amount approximating 
the annual appropriation for auditing expenditures. 
 
Fund Balance – Derived from property taxes; therefore, legally restricted.  Any 
fund balance accumulation should represent no less than three months and no 
more than six months of expenditures. 

 
Special Recreation Fund 

Purpose – Established to account for financial resources that are restricted to 
expenditure for recreational programs for the disabled and related capital 
expenditures. 
 
Financing – The District extends a property tax levy in an amount approximating 
the annual appropriation for special recreation programs and related capital 
expenditures. 
 
Fund Balance – Derived from property taxes; therefore, legally restricted.  Any 
fund balance accumulation should represent no less than three months and no 
more than six months of expenditures. 

 
Liability Insurance Fund 

Purpose – Established to account for financial resources that are restricted to 
expenditure for liability and unemployment insurance costs. 
 
Financing – The District extends a property tax levy in an amount approximating 
the annual appropriation for liability and unemployment insurance expenditures. 
 
Fund Balance – Derived from property taxes and personal property replacement 
taxes; therefore, legally restricted.  Any fund balance accumulation should 
represent no less than three months and no more than six months of 
expenditures. 

  



6 
 

MINIMUM UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE NET POSITION LEVELS – CONTINUED  

 
Proprietary Funds 

 
 EnterpriseRecreational Facilities (Enterprise) Fund 

Purpose - Established to account for and report financial resources invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt, restricted, or unrestricted for future spending 
related to the fund. The focus of enterprise fund measurement is upon 
determination of operating income, changes in net assetsnet position, financial 
position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable 
are those similar to businesses in the private sector. Enterprise funds are required 
to account for operations for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or 
services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge 
of the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing 
services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) 
establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar 
costs. 
 
Financing – User fees, debt financing, or grants are used to finance operations, 
capital outlay and improvements, and debt service retirements. 
 
Net Assets Position– Considered invested in capital assets net of related debt (for 
amounts capitalized as capital assets, less the outstanding debt related to the 
acquisition of said assets). Restricted net assets position relate to bond covenant 
reserves as outlined in the bond ordinance. Unrestricted net asset position targets 
should represent no less than three months of operating expenses (excluding debt 
service and capitalized asset expenses). 
 

Internal Service Fund 
Purpose - Established to account for and report financial resources invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt, restricted, or unrestricted for future spending 
related to the fund. The focus of internal service fund measurement is upon 
determination of operating income, changes in net assets, financial position, and 
cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those 
similar to businesses in the private sector. Internal service funds are used to 
account for the financing of goods or services provided by an activity to other 
departments, funds or component units of the District on a cost-reimbursement 
basis. 
 
Financing – User fees charged to other departments, funds, or component units, 
or debt financing are used to finance operations, capital outlay and 
improvements, and debt service retirements. 
 



7 
 

 
  

Other Considerations 
 
In establishing the above policies for unrestricted fund balance/net assetposition levels, the 
District has considered the following factors: 
 

• The predictability of the District’s revenues and the volatility of its expenditures (i.e., 
higher levels of unrestricted fund balance may be needed if significant revenue sources 
are subject to unpredictable fluctuations or if operating expenditures are highly volatile) 

 
• The District’s perceived exposure to significant one-time outlays (e.g., disasters, 

immediate capital needs, state budget cuts) 
 

• The potential drain upon General Fund resources from other funds as well as the 
availability of resources in other funds (i.e., deficits in other funds may require a higher 
level of unrestricted fund balance be maintained in the General Fund, just as, the 
availability of resources in other funds may reduce the amount of unrestricted fund 
balance needed in the General Fund) 
 

• Liquidity (i.e., a disparity between when financial resources actually become available to 
make payments and the average maturity of related liabilities may require that a higher 
level of resources be maintained) 
 

• Commitments and assignments (i.e., governments may wish to maintain higher levels of 
unrestricted fund balance to compensate for any portion of unrestricted fund balance 
already committed or assigned by the government for a specific purpose) 

 
If any of the above factors change, the District should readdress current unrestricted fund 
balance/net assetposition levels to ensure amounts are appropriate. 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Commissioners: September 21, 2015 



Oak Brook Park District

Fund Balance- Schedule #1

Unaudited Budgeted

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2007 - 2008 2008 - 2009 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018

Beginning Nonspendable -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                       -$                       4,501$               752$                  752$                  

Beginning Restricted -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Unassigned 658,244             801,280          767,878         895,420          949,683          914,789          978,523            1,124,447         1,303,359         1,399,312         1,440,578         

Total Beginning Fund Balance 658,244$           801,280$       767,878$       895,420$       949,683$       914,789$       978,523$          1,124,447$       1,307,860$       1,400,064$       1,441,330$       

Total Revenues 1,981,816$        1,982,185$    2,056,713$    2,085,002$    2,142,325$    2,277,249$    2,419,047$       2,556,007$       2,670,851$       2,747,286$       2,799,812$       

Total Expenditures 1,663,780          1,830,587      1,739,171      1,840,739      1,967,219      1,998,515      2,053,123         2,112,594         2,303,647         2,421,019         2,754,726         

Other Financing Sources/(Uses) (175,000)            (185,000)        (190,000)        (190,000)        (210,000)        (215,000)        (220,000)           (260,000)           (275,000)           (285,000)           (410,000)           

Net Change in Fund Balance 143,036$           (33,402)$        127,542$       54,263$          (34,894)$        63,734$          145,924$          183,413$           92,204$             41,266$             (364,914)$         

Ending Nonspendable -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                   4,501$               752$                  752$                  

Ending Restricted -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Unassigned 801,280             767,878          895,420         949,683          914,789          978,523          1,124,447         1,303,359         1,399,312         1,440,578         

Total Ending Fund Balance 801,280$           767,878$       895,420$       949,683$       914,789$       978,523$       1,124,447$       1,307,860$       1,400,064$       1,441,330$       

Ending Nonspendable 752$                  

Ending Restricted -                          

Ending Committed -                          

Ending Assigned -                          

Ending Unassigned 1,075,665         

Total Ending Fund Balance 1,076,417$       

Unrestricted Fund Balance Targets:

^ Maximum (6 months of expenditures): 831,890$           915,294$       869,586$       920,370$       983,610$       999,258$       1,026,562$       1,056,297$       1,151,824$       1,210,510$       1,377,363$       

* Median (4.5 months of expenditures): 623,918$           686,470$       652,189$       690,277$       737,707$       749,443$       769,921$          792,223$           863,868$           907,882$           1,033,022$       

^ Minimum (3 months of expenditures): 415,945$           457,647$       434,793$       460,185$       491,805$       499,629$       513,281$          528,149$           575,912$           605,255$           688,681$           

^ Target specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.

* Target not specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.  Simply included as a point of reference. 

NOTE> Other Financing Uses activity represent transfers to the Capital Projects fund to pay for various capital purchases and costs.  

Audited

GENERAL FUND (Governmental Fund)
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 1 Last Update: 08/11/2017



$
8

0
1

,2
8

0
 

$
7

6
7

,8
7

8
 

$
8

9
5

,4
2

0
 

$
9

4
9

,6
8

3
 

$
9

1
4

,7
8

9
 

$
9

7
8

,5
2

3
 

$
1

,1
2

4
,4

4
7

 

$
1

,3
0

3
,3

5
9

 $
1

,3
9

9
,3

1
2

 

$
1

,4
4

0
,5

7
8

 

$
1

,0
7

5
,6

6
5

 

$
8

3
1

,8
9

0
 $

9
1

5
,2

9
4

 

$
8

6
9

,5
8

6
 

$
9

2
0

,3
7

0
 

$
9

8
3

,6
1

0
 

$
9

9
9

,2
5

8
 

$
1

,0
2

6
,5

6
2

 

$
1

,0
5

6
,2

9
7

 $
1

,1
5

1
,8

2
4

 

$
1

,2
1

0
,5

1
0

 

$
1

,3
7

7
,3

6
3

 

$
6

2
3

,9
1

8
 

$
6

8
6

,4
7

0
 

$
6

5
2

,1
8

9
 

$
6

9
0

,2
7

7
 

$
7

3
7

,7
0

7
 

$
7

4
9

,4
4

3
 

$
7

6
9

,9
2

1
 

$
7

9
2

,2
2

3
 

$
8

6
3

,8
6

8
 

$
9

0
7

,8
8

2
 

$
1

,0
3

3
,0

2
2

 

$
4

1
5

,9
4

5
 

$
4

5
7

,6
4

7
 

$
4

3
4

,7
9

3
 

$
4

6
0

,1
8

5
 

$
4

9
1

,8
0

5
 

$
4

9
9

,6
2

9
 

$
5

1
3

,2
8

1
 

$
5

2
8

,1
4

9
 

$
5

7
5

,9
1

2
 

$
6

0
5

,2
5

5
 $

6
8

8
,6

8
1

 

2 0 0 7  - 2 0 0 8 2 0 0 8  - 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 9  - 2 0 1 0 2 0 1 0  - 2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1  - 2 0 1 2 2 0 1 2  - 2 0 1 3 2 0 1 3  - 2 0 1 4 2 0 1 4  - 2 0 1 5 2 0 1 5  - 2 0 1 6 2 0 1 6  - 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 7  - 2 0 1 8

GENERAL FUND- ACTUAL, PROJECTED AND TARGETED ENDING UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

Actual Unrestricted Balance Projected Unrestricted Balance Targeted Maximum Unrestricted (6 months)

Median Unrestricted (4.5 months) Targeted Minimum Unrestricted (3 months)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 2 Last Update: 08/11/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Fund Balance- Schedule #2

Unaudited Budgeted

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2007 - 2008 2008 - 2009 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018

Beginning Nonspendable -$                        -$                    6,147$           3,504$            6,191$            8,980$            17,378$            53,330$             14,092$             15,374$             13,757$             

Beginning Restricted -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Committed 795,216             872,856          921,427         956,975          1,246,997      1,440,881      1,667,239         1,914,309         2,086,666         1,847,956         1,885,658         

Beginning Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Beginning Fund Balance 795,216$           872,856$       927,574$       960,479$       1,253,188$    1,449,861$    1,684,617$       1,967,639$       2,100,758$       1,863,330$       1,899,415$       

Total Revenues 2,676,697$        2,654,872$    2,535,780$    2,707,393$    2,756,381$    3,054,633$    3,425,891$       3,662,255$       3,492,396$       3,609,543$       3,846,100$       

Total Expenditures 2,599,057          2,600,154      2,502,875      2,414,684      2,559,708      2,819,877      3,142,869         3,529,136         3,729,824         3,573,458         4,247,931         

Other Financing Sources/(Uses) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance 77,640$             54,718$          32,905$         292,709$       196,673$       234,756$       283,022$          133,119$           (237,428)$         36,085$             (401,831)$         

Ending Nonspendable -$                   6,147$            3,504$           6,191$            8,980$            17,378$          53,330$            14,092$             15,374$             13,757$             

Ending Restricted -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Committed 872,856             921,427          956,975         1,246,997      1,440,881      1,667,239      1,914,309         2,086,666         1,847,956         1,885,658         

Ending Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 872,856$           927,574$       960,479$       1,253,188$    1,449,861$    1,684,617$    1,967,639$       2,100,758$       1,863,330$       1,899,415$       

Ending Nonspendable 13,757$             

Ending Restricted -                          

Ending Committed 1,483,826         

Ending Assigned -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 1,497,583$       

Unrestricted Fund Balance Targets:

* Maximum (6 months of expenditures): 1,299,529$        1,300,077$    1,251,438$    1,207,342$    1,279,854$    1,409,939$    1,571,435$       1,764,568$       1,864,912$       1,786,729$       2,123,965$       

* Median (4.5 months of expenditures): 974,646$           975,058$       938,578$       905,507$       959,891$       1,057,454$    1,178,576$       1,323,426$       1,398,684$       1,340,047$       1,592,974$       

* Minimum (3 months of expenditures): 649,764$           650,039$       625,719$       603,671$       639,927$       704,969$       785,717$          882,284$           932,456$           893,364$           1,061,983$       

* Target not specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.  Per review of the fund balance policies of other park districts, several of them have established a minimum target of 25% of annual

operating expenditures.  Finance is proposing adding the listed maximum and minimum targets to our existing policy. 

RECREATION FUND (Governmental-Special Revenue Fund)

Audited
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 3 Last Update: 08/11/2017



$
8

7
2

,8
5

6
 

$
9

2
1

,4
2

7
 

$
9

5
6

,9
7

5
 

$
1

,2
4

6
,9

9
7

 

$
1

,4
4

0
,8

8
1

 

$
1

,6
6

7
,2

3
9

 

$
1

,9
1

4
,3

0
9

 $
2

,0
8

6
,6

6
6

 

$
1

,8
4

7
,9

5
6

 

$
1

,8
8

5
,6

5
8

 

$
1

,4
8

3
,8

2
6

 

$
1

,2
9

9
,5

2
9

 

$
1

,3
0

0
,0

7
7

 

$
1

,2
5

1
,4

3
8

 

$
1

,2
0

7
,3

4
2

 

$
1

,2
7

9
,8

5
4

 

$
1

,4
0

9
,9

3
9

 $
1

,5
7

1
,4

3
5

 

$
1

,7
6

4
,5

6
8

 

$
1

,8
6

4
,9

1
2

 

$
1

,7
8

6
,7

2
9

 

$
2

,1
2

3
,9

6
5

 

$
9

7
4

,6
4

6
 

$
9

7
5

,0
5

8
 

$
9

3
8

,5
7

8
 

$
9

0
5

,5
0

7
 

$
9

5
9

,8
9

1
 

$
1

,0
5

7
,4

5
4

 

$
1

,1
7

8
,5

7
6

 $
1

,3
2

3
,4

2
6

 

$
1

,3
9

8
,6

8
4

 

$
1

,3
4

0
,0

4
7

 

$
1

,5
9

2
,9

7
4

 

$
6

4
9

,7
6

4
 

$
6

5
0

,0
3

9
 

$
6

2
5

,7
1

9
 

$
6

0
3

,6
7

1
 

$
6

3
9

,9
2

7
 

$
7

0
4

,9
6

9
 

$
7

8
5

,7
1

7
 

$
8

8
2

,2
8

4
 

$
9

3
2

,4
5

6
 

$
8

9
3

,3
6

4
 

$
1

,0
6

1
,9

8
3

 

2 0 0 7  - 2 0 0 8 2 0 0 8  - 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 9  - 2 0 1 0 2 0 1 0  - 2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1  - 2 0 1 2 2 0 1 2  - 2 0 1 3 2 0 1 3  - 2 0 1 4 2 0 1 4  - 2 0 1 5 2 0 1 5  - 2 0 1 6 2 0 1 6  - 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 7  - 2 0 1 8

RECREATION FUND- ACTUAL, PROJECTED AND TARGETED ENDING UNRESTRIC TED FUND BALANCE

Actual Unrestricted Balance Projected Unrestricted Balance Targeted Maximum Unrestricted (6 months)

Median Unrestricted (4.5 months) Targeted Minimum Unrestricted (3 months)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 4 Last Update: 08/11/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Fund Balance- Schedule #3

Unaudited Budgeted

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2007 - 2008 2008 - 2009 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018

Beginning Nonspendable -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                   -$                   

Beginning Restricted 103,160             114,641          121,841         124,602          129,369          50,328            53,539               57,663               61,450               61,980               54,206               

Beginning Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Beginning Fund Balance 103,160$           114,641$       121,841$       124,602$       129,369$       50,328$          53,539$            57,663$             61,450$             61,980$             54,206$             

Total Revenues 297,219$           290,693$       288,264$       291,327$       292,702$       289,486$       310,918$          311,818$           308,561$           300,256$           331,250$           

Total Expenditures 285,738             283,493          285,502         286,560          286,743          286,275          306,794            308,031             308,031             308,030             330,914             

Other Financing Sources/(Uses) -                          -                      -                      -                      (85,000)          -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance 11,481$             7,200$            2,762$           4,767$            (79,041)$        3,211$            4,124$               3,787$               530$                  (7,774)$              336$                  

Ending Nonspendable -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Restricted 114,641             121,841          124,602         129,369          50,328            53,539            57,663               61,450               61,980               54,206               

Ending Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 114,641$           121,841$       124,602$       129,369$       50,328$          53,539$          57,663$            61,450$             61,980$             54,206$             

Ending Nonspendable -$                   

Ending Restricted 54,542               

Ending Committed -                          

Ending Assigned -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 54,542$             

Restricted Fund Balance Targets:

^ Maximum (Following Principal & Interest Pmt.): 283,492$           285,503$       286,560$       286,742$       286,275$       308,031$       308,031$          308,031$           308,030$           330,914$           334,605$           

* Median (Following Principal Pmt.): 235,000$           245,000$       255,000$       265,000$       275,000$       178,927$       231,712$          237,968$           244,678$           251,921$           259,781$           

* Minimum (Following Interest Pmt.): 48,492$             40,503$          31,560$         21,742$          11,275$          129,104$       76,319$            70,063$             63,352$             78,993$             74,824$             

^ Target specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.

* Target not specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.  Simply included as a point of reference. 

NOTE> The Other Financing Use activity recognized in fiscal year 2011/2012 is comprised of a $75,000 transfer to the Capital Projects fund and a $10,000 transfer to the IMRF fund.

DEBT SERVICE FUND (Governmental Fund)

Audited
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 5 Last Update: 08/11/2017



$
1

1
4

,6
4

1
 

$
1

2
1

,8
4

1
 

$
1

2
4

,6
0

2
 

$
1

2
9

,3
6

9
 

$
5

0
,3

2
8

 

$
5

3
,5

3
9

 

$
5

7
,6

6
3

 

$
6

1
,4

5
0

 

$
6

1
,9

8
0

 

$
5

4
,2

0
6

 

$
5

4
,5

4
2

 

$
2

8
3

,4
9

2
 

$
2

8
5

,5
0

3
 

$
2

8
6

,5
6

0
 

$
2

8
6

,7
4

2
 

$
2

8
6

,2
7

5
 $

3
0

8
,0

3
1

 

$
3

0
8

,0
3

1
 

$
3

0
8

,0
3

1
 

$
3

0
8

,0
3

0
 $

3
3

0
,9

1
4

 

$
3

3
4

,6
0

5
 

$
2

3
5

,0
0

0
 

$
2

4
5

,0
0

0
 

$
2

5
5

,0
0

0
 

$
2

6
5

,0
0

0
 

$
2

7
5

,0
0

0
 

$
1

7
8

,9
2

7
 

$
2

3
1

,7
1

2
 

$
2

3
7

,9
6

8
 

$
2

4
4

,6
7

8
 

$
2

5
1

,9
2

1
 

$
2

5
9

,7
8

1
 

$
4

8
,4

9
2

 

$
4

0
,5

0
3

 

$
3

1
,5

6
0

 

$
2

1
,7

4
2

 

$
1

1
,2

7
5

 

$
1

2
9

,1
0

4
 

$
7

6
,3

1
9

 

$
7

0
,0

6
3

 

$
6

3
,3

5
2

 $
7

8
,9

9
3

 

$
7

4
,8

2
4

 

2 0 0 7  - 2 0 0 8 2 0 0 8  - 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 9  - 2 0 1 0 2 0 1 0  - 2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1  - 2 0 1 2 2 0 1 2  - 2 0 1 3 2 0 1 3  - 2 0 1 4 2 0 1 4  - 2 0 1 5 2 0 1 5  - 2 0 1 6 2 0 1 6  - 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 7  - 2 0 1 8

DEBT SERVICE FUND- ACTUAL, PROJECTED AND TARGETED ENDING RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

Actual Restricted Balance Projected Restricted Balance Targeted Maximum Restricted (P&I) Median Restricted (Principal Only) Minimum Restricted (Interest Only)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 6 Last Update: 08/11/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Fund Balance- Schedule #4

Unaudited Budgeted

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2007 - 2008 2008 - 2009 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018

Beginning Nonspendable -$                        -$                    -$                    28,179$          28,179$          -$                    -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                   -$                   

Beginning Restricted -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Committed -                          308,451          223,192         286,926          176,524          2,744,624      611,246            258,773             463,201             605,753             2,079,269         

Beginning Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Unassigned 359,457             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Beginning Fund Balance 359,457$           308,451$       223,192$       315,105$       204,703$       2,744,624$    611,246$          258,773$           463,201$           605,753$           2,079,269$       

Total Revenues 13,523$             5,030$            246,840$       3,170$            2,255$            63,334$          38,712$            2,204$               2,352$               206,209$           3,000$               

Total Expenditures 239,529             275,289          429,464         303,572          282,067          2,411,712      611,185            57,776               134,800             181,303             2,352,884         

Other Financing Sources/(Uses) 175,000             185,000          274,537         190,000          2,819,733      215,000          220,000            260,000             275,000             1,448,610         410,000             

Net Change in Fund Balance (51,006)$            (85,259)$        91,913$         (110,402)$      2,539,921$    (2,133,378)$   (352,473)$         204,428$           142,552$           1,473,516$       (1,939,884)$      

Ending Nonspendable -$                   -$                28,179$         28,179$          -$                -$                -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Restricted -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Committed 308,451             223,192          286,926         176,524          2,744,624      611,246          258,773            463,201             605,753             2,079,269         

Ending Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 308,451$           223,192$       315,105$       204,703$       2,744,624$    611,246$       258,773$          463,201$           605,753$           2,079,269$       

Ending Nonspendable -$                   

Ending Restricted -                          

Ending Committed 139,385             

Ending Assigned -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 139,385$           

Unrestricted Fund Balance Targets:

* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

* Target not specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy because fund balance can vary widely from year to year since the number and scope of the planned capital projects can also vary significantly.

NOTE> Other Financing Sources activity represent transfers from the General Fund as well as bond proceeds and grant receipts that were used to pay for various capital purchases and costs.  

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (Governmental Fund)

Audited
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d

Maximum

Median

Minimum

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 7 Last Update: 08/11/2017



$
3

0
8

,4
5

1
 

$
2

2
3

,1
9

2
 

$
2

8
6

,9
2

6
 

$
1

7
6

,5
2

4
 

$
2

,7
4

4
,6

2
4

 

$
6

1
1

,2
4

6
 

$
2

5
8

,7
7

3
 

$
4

6
3

,2
0

1
 $
6

0
5

,7
5

3
 

$
2

,0
7

9
,2

6
9

 

$
1

3
9

,3
8

5
 

2 0 0 7  - 2 0 0 8 2 0 0 8  - 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 9  - 2 0 1 0 2 0 1 0  - 2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1  - 2 0 1 2 2 0 1 2  - 2 0 1 3 2 0 1 3  - 2 0 1 4 2 0 1 4  - 2 0 1 5 2 0 1 5  - 2 0 1 6 2 0 1 6  - 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 7  - 2 0 1 8

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND- ACTUAL AND PROJECTED ENDING UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

Actual Unrestricted Balance Projected Unrestricted Balance

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 8 Last Update: 08/11/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Fund Balance- Schedule #5

Unaudited Budgeted

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2007 - 2008 2008 - 2009 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018

Beginning Nonspendable -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                   -$                   

Beginning Restricted (2,370)                (179)                6,365              17,789            30,035            40,822            45,248               66,165               85,702               106,076             135,026             

Beginning Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Beginning Fund Balance (2,370)$              (179)$              6,365$           17,789$          30,035$          40,822$          45,248$            66,165$             85,702$             106,076$           135,026$           

Total Revenues 128,595$           131,572$       140,908$       150,639$       159,842$       169,770$       179,637$          188,030$           191,392$           210,876$           185,750$           

Total Expenditures 126,404             125,028          129,484         138,393          159,055          165,344          158,720            168,493             171,018             181,926             200,000             

Other Financing Sources/(Uses) -                          -                      -                      -                      10,000            -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance 2,191$               6,544$            11,424$         12,246$          10,787$          4,426$            20,917$            19,537$             20,374$             28,950$             (14,250)$           

Ending Nonspendable -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Restricted (179)                   6,365              17,789           30,035            40,822            45,248            66,165               85,702               106,076             135,026             

Ending Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance (179)$                 6,365$            17,789$         30,035$          40,822$          45,248$          66,165$            85,702$             106,076$           135,026$           

Ending Nonspendable -$                   

Ending Restricted 120,776             

Ending Committed -                          

Ending Assigned -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 120,776$           

Restricted Fund Balance Targets:

* Maximum (6 months of expenditures): 63,202$             62,514$          64,742$         69,197$          79,528$          82,672$          79,360$            84,247$             85,509$             90,963$             100,000$           

* Median (4.5 months of expenditures): 47,402$             46,886$          48,557$         51,897$          59,646$          62,004$          59,520$            63,185$             64,132$             68,222$             75,000$             

* Minimum (3 months of expenditures): 31,601$             31,257$          32,371$         34,598$          39,764$          41,336$          39,680$            42,123$             42,755$             45,482$             50,000$             

* Target not specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.  Finance is proposing adding the listed maximum and minimum targets to our existing policy.

NOTE> The Other Financing Source activity recognized in fiscal year 2011/2012 represents a $10,000 transfer from the Debt Service fund.

IMRF FUND (Governmental-Special Revenue Fund)

Audited
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 9 Last Update: 08/11/2017



$
(1

7
9

)

$
6

,3
6

5
 $

1
7

,7
8

9
 $
3

0
,0

3
5

 

$
4

0
,8

2
2

 

$
4

5
,2

4
8

 

$
6

6
,1

6
5

 

$
8

5
,7

0
2

 

$
1

0
6

,0
7

6
 

$
1

3
5

,0
2

6
 

$
1

2
0

,7
7

6
 

$
6

3
,2

0
2

 

$
6

2
,5

1
4

 

$
6

4
,7

4
2

 

$
6

9
,1

9
7

 

$
7

9
,5

2
8

 

$
8

2
,6

7
2

 

$
7

9
,3

6
0

 

$
8

4
,2

4
7

 

$
8

5
,5

0
9

 

$
9

0
,9

6
3

 

$
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

$
4

7
,4

0
2

 

$
4

6
,8

8
6

 

$
4

8
,5

5
7

 

$
5

1
,8

9
7

 

$
5

9
,6

4
6

 

$
6

2
,0

0
4

 

$
5

9
,5

2
0

 

$
6

3
,1

8
5

 

$
6

4
,1

3
2

 

$
6

8
,2

2
2

 

$
7

5
,0

0
0

 

$
3

1
,6

0
1

 

$
3

1
,2

5
7

 

$
3

2
,3

7
1

 

$
3

4
,5

9
8

 

$
3

9
,7

6
4

 

$
4

1
,3

3
6

 

$
3

9
,6

8
0

 

$
4

2
,1

2
3

 

$
4

2
,7

5
5

 

$
4

5
,4

8
2

 

$
5

0
,0

0
0

 

2 0 0 7  - 2 0 0 8 2 0 0 8  - 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 9  - 2 0 1 0 2 0 1 0  - 2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1  - 2 0 1 2 2 0 1 2  - 2 0 1 3 2 0 1 3  - 2 0 1 4 2 0 1 4  - 2 0 1 5 2 0 1 5  - 2 0 1 6 2 0 1 6  - 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 7  - 2 0 1 8

IMRF FUND- ACTUAL, PROJECTED AND TARGETED ENDING RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

Actual Restricted Balance Projected Restricted Balance Targeted Maximum Restricted (6 Months) Median Restricted (4.5 Months) Targeted Minimum Restricted (3 Months)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 10 Last Update: 08/11/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Fund Balance- Schedule #6

Unaudited Budgeted

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2007 - 2008 2008 - 2009 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018

Beginning Nonspendable -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                   -$                   

Beginning Restricted 108,901             132,352          138,850         126,420          96,759            104,392          114,179            111,997             73,406               60,825               55,439               

Beginning Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Beginning Fund Balance 108,901$           132,352$       138,850$       126,420$       96,759$          104,392$       114,179$          111,997$           73,406$             60,825$             55,439$             

Total Revenues 195,326$           191,847$       170,300$       152,850$       200,681$       206,104$       202,738$          177,359$           214,343$           228,960$           247,700$           

Total Expenditures 171,875             185,349          182,730         182,511          193,048          196,317          204,920            215,950             226,924             234,346             258,000             

Other Financing Sources/(Uses) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance 23,451$             6,498$            (12,430)$        (29,661)$        7,633$            9,787$            (2,182)$             (38,591)$           (12,581)$           (5,386)$              (10,300)$           

Ending Nonspendable -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Restricted 132,352             138,850          126,420         96,759            104,392          114,179          111,997            73,406               60,825               55,439               

Ending Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 132,352$           138,850$       126,420$       96,759$          104,392$       114,179$       111,997$          73,406$             60,825$             55,439$             

Ending Nonspendable -$                   

Ending Restricted 45,139               

Ending Committed -                          

Ending Assigned -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 45,139$             

Restricted Fund Balance Targets:

* Maximum (6 months of expenditures): 85,938$             92,675$          91,365$         91,256$          96,524$          98,159$          102,460$          107,975$           113,462$           117,173$           129,000$           

* Median (4.5 months of expenditures): 64,453$             69,506$          68,524$         68,442$          72,393$          73,619$          76,845$            80,981$             85,097$             87,880$             96,750$             

* Minimum (3 months of expenditures): 42,969$             46,337$          45,683$         45,628$          48,262$          49,079$          51,230$            53,988$             56,731$             58,586$             64,500$             

* Target not specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.  Finance is proposing adding the listed maximum and minimum targets to our existing policy.

SOCIAL SECURITY FUND (Governmental-Special Revenue Fund)

Audited
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 11 Last Update: 08/11/2017



$
1

3
2

,3
5

2
 

$
1

3
8

,8
5

0
 

$
1

2
6

,4
2

0
 

$
9

6
,7

5
9

 

$
1

0
4

,3
9

2
 $
1

1
4

,1
7

9
 

$
1

1
1

,9
9

7
 

$
7

3
,4

0
6

 

$
6

0
,8

2
5

 

$
5

5
,4

3
9

 

$
4

5
,1

3
9

 

$
8

5
,9

3
8

 

$
9

2
,6

7
5

 

$
9

1
,3

6
5

 

$
9

1
,2

5
6

 

$
9

6
,5

2
4

 

$
9

8
,1

5
9

 

$
1

0
2

,4
6

0
 

$
1

0
7

,9
7

5
 

$
1

1
3

,4
6

2
 

$
1

1
7

,1
7

3
 $

1
2

9
,0

0
0

 

$
6

4
,4

5
3

 

$
6

9
,5

0
6

 

$
6

8
,5

2
4

 

$
6

8
,4

4
2

 

$
7

2
,3

9
3

 

$
7

3
,6

1
9

 

$
7

6
,8

4
5

 

$
8

0
,9

8
1

 

$
8

5
,0

9
7

 

$
8

7
,8

8
0

 $
9

6
,7

5
0

 

$
4

2
,9

6
9

 

$
4

6
,3

3
7

 

$
4

5
,6

8
3

 

$
4

5
,6

2
8

 

$
4

8
,2

6
2

 

$
4

9
,0

7
9

 

$
5

1
,2

3
0

 

$
5

3
,9

8
8

 

$
5

6
,7

3
1

 

$
5

8
,5

8
6

 

$
6

4
,5

0
0

 

2 0 0 7  - 2 0 0 8 2 0 0 8  - 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 9  - 2 0 1 0 2 0 1 0  - 2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1  - 2 0 1 2 2 0 1 2  - 2 0 1 3 2 0 1 3  - 2 0 1 4 2 0 1 4  - 2 0 1 5 2 0 1 5  - 2 0 1 6 2 0 1 6  - 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 7  - 2 0 1 8

SOCIAL SECURITY FUND- ACTUAL, PROJECTED AND TARGETED ENDING REST RICTED FUND BALANCE

Actual Restricted Balance Projected Restricted Balance Targeted Maximum Restricted (6 Months) Median Restricted (4.5 Months) Targeted Minimum Restricted (3 Months)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 12 Last Update: 08/11/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Fund Balance- Schedule #7

Unaudited Budgeted

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2007 - 2008 2008 - 2009 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018

Beginning Nonspendable -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                   -$                   

Beginning Restricted 6,471                 11,186            18,874           22,815            28,827            28,846            27,231               21,916               17,102               27,357               36,070               

Beginning Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Beginning Fund Balance 6,471$               11,186$          18,874$         22,815$          28,827$          28,846$          27,231$            21,916$             17,102$             27,357$             36,070$             

Total Revenues 19,226$             20,125$          15,377$         17,789$          13,094$          10,723$          15,309$            15,651$             23,155$             21,583$             14,130$             

Total Expenditures 14,511               12,437            11,436           11,777            13,075            12,338            20,624               20,465               12,900               12,870               27,850               

Other Financing Sources/(Uses) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance 4,715$               7,688$            3,941$           6,012$            19$                 (1,615)$          (5,315)$             (4,814)$              10,255$             8,713$               (13,720)$           

Ending Nonspendable -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Restricted 11,186               18,874            22,815           28,827            28,846            27,231            21,916               17,102               27,357               36,070               

Ending Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 11,186$             18,874$          22,815$         28,827$          28,846$          27,231$          21,916$            17,102$             27,357$             36,070$             

Ending Nonspendable -$                   

Ending Restricted 22,350               

Ending Committed -                          

Ending Assigned -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 22,350$             

Restricted Fund Balance Targets:

* Maximum (6 months of expenditures): 7,256$               6,219$            5,718$           5,889$            6,538$            6,169$            10,312$            10,233$             6,450$               6,435$               13,925$             

* Median (4.5 months of expenditures): 5,442$               4,664$            4,289$           4,416$            4,903$            4,627$            7,734$               7,674$               4,838$               4,826$               10,444$             

* Minimum (3 months of expenditures): 3,628$               3,109$            2,859$           2,944$            3,269$            3,085$            5,156$               5,116$               3,225$               3,218$               6,963$               

* Target not specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.  Finance is proposing adding the listed maximum and minimum targets to our existing policy.

AUDIT FUND (Governmental-Special Revenue Fund)

Audited
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 13 Last Update: 08/11/2017



$
1

1
,1

8
6

 

$
1

8
,8

7
4

 $
2

2
,8

1
5

 

$
2

8
,8

2
7

 

$
2

8
,8

4
6

 

$
2

7
,2

3
1

 

$
2

1
,9

1
6

 

$
1

7
,1

0
2

 

$
2

7
,3

5
7

 

$
3

6
,0

7
0

 

$
2

2
,3

5
0

 

$
7

,2
5

6
 

$
6

,2
1

9
 

$
5

,7
1

8
 

$
5

,8
8

9
 

$
6

,5
3

8
 

$
6

,1
6

9
 $

1
0

,3
1

2
 

$
1

0
,2

3
3

 

$
6

,4
5

0
 

$
6

,4
3

5
 

$
1

3
,9

2
5

 

$
5

,4
4

2
 

$
4

,6
6

4
 

$
4

,2
8

9
 

$
4

,4
1

6
 

$
4

,9
0

3
 

$
4

,6
2

7
 

$
7

,7
3

4
 

$
7

,6
7

4
 

$
4

,8
3

8
 

$
4

,8
2

6
 

$
1

0
,4

4
4

 

$
3

,6
2

8
 

$
3

,1
0

9
 

$
2

,8
5

9
 

$
2

,9
4

4
 

$
3

,2
6

9
 

$
3

,0
8

5
 

$
5

,1
5

6
 

$
5

,1
1

6
 

$
3

,2
2

5
 

$
3

,2
1

8
 $
6

,9
6

3
 

2 0 0 7  - 2 0 0 8 2 0 0 8  - 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 9  - 2 0 1 0 2 0 1 0  - 2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1  - 2 0 1 2 2 0 1 2  - 2 0 1 3 2 0 1 3  - 2 0 1 4 2 0 1 4  - 2 0 1 5 2 0 1 5  - 2 0 1 6 2 0 1 6  - 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 7  - 2 0 1 8

AUDIT FUND- ACTUAL, PROJECTED AND TARGETED ENDING RESTRICTED FUN D BALANCE

Actual Restricted Balance Projected Restricted Balance Targeted Maximum Restricted (6 Months) Median Restricted (4.5 Months) Targeted Minimum Restricted (3 Months)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 14 Last Update: 08/11/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Fund Balance- Schedule #8

Unaudited Budgeted

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2007 - 2008 2008 - 2009 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018

Beginning Nonspendable -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                   -$                   

Beginning Restricted 20,587               45,173            58,266           76,278            90,818            91,916            82,448               65,055               35,967               15,234               26,786               

Beginning Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Beginning Fund Balance 20,587$             45,173$          58,266$         76,278$          90,818$          91,916$          82,448$            65,055$             35,967$             15,234$             26,786$             

Total Revenues 62,902$             66,699$          71,486$         70,793$          71,868$          76,145$          80,600$            84,659$             86,881$             109,006$           117,750$           

Total Expenditures 38,316               53,606            53,474           56,253            70,770            85,613            97,993               113,747             107,614             97,454               124,700             

Other Financing Sources/(Uses) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance 24,586$             13,093$          18,012$         14,540$          1,098$            (9,468)$          (17,393)$           (29,088)$           (20,733)$           11,552$             (6,950)$              

Ending Nonspendable -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Restricted 45,173               58,266            76,278           90,818            91,916            82,448            65,055               35,967               15,234               26,786               

Ending Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 45,173$             58,266$          76,278$         90,818$          91,916$          82,448$          65,055$            35,967$             15,234$             26,786$             

Ending Nonspendable -$                   

Ending Restricted 19,836               

Ending Committed -                          

Ending Assigned -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 19,836$             

Restricted Fund Balance Targets:

* Maximum (6 months of expenditures): 19,158$             26,803$          26,737$         28,127$          35,385$          42,807$          48,997$            56,874$             53,807$             48,727$             62,350$             

* Median (4.5 months of expenditures): 14,369$             20,102$          20,053$         21,095$          26,539$          32,105$          36,747$            42,655$             40,355$             36,545$             46,763$             

* Minimum (3 months of expenditures): 9,579$               13,402$          13,369$         14,063$          17,693$          21,403$          24,498$            28,437$             26,904$             24,363$             31,175$             

* Target not specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.  Finance is proposing adding the listed maximum and minimum targets to our existing policy.

SPECIAL RECREATION FUND (Governmental-Special Revenue Fund)

Audited
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 15 Last Update: 08/11/2017



$
4

5
,1

7
3

 

$
5

8
,2

6
6

 

$
7

6
,2

7
8

 

$
9

0
,8

1
8

 

$
9

1
,9

1
6

 

$
8

2
,4

4
8

 

$
6

5
,0

5
5

 

$
3

5
,9

6
7

 

$
1

5
,2

3
4

 

$
2

6
,7

8
6

 

$
1

9
,8

3
6

 

$
1

9
,1

5
8

 

$
2

6
,8

0
3

 

$
2

6
,7

3
7

 

$
2

8
,1

2
7

 

$
3

5
,3

8
5

 

$
4

2
,8

0
7

 

$
4

8
,9

9
7

 

$
5

6
,8

7
4

 

$
5

3
,8

0
7

 

$
4

8
,7

2
7

 

$
6

2
,3

5
0

 

$
1

4
,3

6
9

 

$
2

0
,1

0
2

 

$
2

0
,0

5
3

 

$
2

1
,0

9
5

 

$
2

6
,5

3
9

 

$
3

2
,1

0
5

 $
3

6
,7

4
7

 

$
4

2
,6

5
5

 

$
4

0
,3

5
5

 

$
3

6
,5

4
5

 

$
4

6
,7

6
3

 

$
9

,5
7

9
 $

1
3

,4
0

2
 

$
1

3
,3

6
9

 

$
1

4
,0

6
3

 

$
1

7
,6

9
3

 

$
2

1
,4

0
3

 

$
2

4
,4

9
8

 $
2

8
,4

3
7

 

$
2

6
,9

0
4

 

$
2

4
,3

6
3

 

$
3

1
,1

7
5

 

2 0 0 7  - 2 0 0 8 2 0 0 8  - 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 9  - 2 0 1 0 2 0 1 0  - 2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1  - 2 0 1 2 2 0 1 2  - 2 0 1 3 2 0 1 3  - 2 0 1 4 2 0 1 4  - 2 0 1 5 2 0 1 5  - 2 0 1 6 2 0 1 6  - 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 7  - 2 0 1 8

SPECIAL RECREATION FUND- ACTUAL, PROJECTED AND TARGETED ENDING RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

Actual Restricted Balance Projected Restricted Balance Targeted Maximum Restricted (6 Months) Median Restricted (4.5 Months) Targeted Minimum Restricted (3 Months)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 16 Last Update: 08/11/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Fund Balance- Schedule #9

Unaudited Budgeted

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2007 - 2008 2008 - 2009 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 2017 - 2018

Beginning Nonspendable -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                   -$                   

Beginning Restricted 104,256             95,172            119,190         100,323          112,400          121,493          114,907            113,841             131,636             141,681             133,963             

Beginning Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Beginning Fund Balance 104,256$           95,172$          119,190$       100,323$       112,400$       121,493$       114,907$          113,841$           131,636$           141,681$           133,963$           

Total Revenues 85,398$             105,174$       71,955$         108,819$       121,794$       102,156$       105,171$          104,125$           101,951$           102,362$           60,250$             

Total Expenditures 94,482               81,156            90,822           96,742            112,701          108,742          106,237            86,330               91,906               110,080             168,305             

Other Financing Sources/(Uses) -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance (9,084)$              24,018$          (18,867)$        12,077$          9,093$            (6,586)$          (1,066)$             17,795$             10,045$             (7,718)$              (108,055)$         

Ending Nonspendable -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Ending Restricted 95,172               119,190          100,323         112,400          121,493          114,907          113,841            131,636             141,681             133,963             

Ending Committed -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Assigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                         -                          -                          -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 95,172$             119,190$       100,323$       112,400$       121,493$       114,907$       113,841$          131,636$           141,681$           133,963$           

Ending Nonspendable -$                   

Ending Restricted 25,908               

Ending Committed -                          

Ending Assigned -                          

Ending Unassigned -                          

Total Ending Fund Balance 25,908$             

Restricted Fund Balance Targets:

* Maximum (6 months of expenditures): 47,241$             40,578$          45,411$         48,371$          56,351$          54,371$          53,119$            43,165$             45,953$             55,040$             84,153$             

* Median (4.5 months of expenditures): 35,431$             30,434$          34,058$         36,278$          42,263$          40,778$          39,839$            32,374$             34,465$             41,280$             63,114$             

* Minimum (3 months of expenditures): 23,621$             20,289$          22,706$         24,186$          28,175$          27,186$          26,559$            21,583$             22,977$             27,520$             42,076$             

* Target not specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.  Finance is proposing adding the listed maximum and minimum targets to our existing policy.

+ Beginning with our fiscal year ending April 30, 2017, the Liability Insurance Fund has been classified as a Governmental- Special Revenue Fund.  Prior to this, the Fund was classified as a Proprietary- Internal

Service Fund.  As a result of this reclassification, previously accumulated unrestricted net position has been reclassified as restricted fund balance.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND (Governmental-Special Revenue Fund)
+

Audited
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 17 Last Update: 08/11/2017



$
9

5
,1

7
2

 

$
1

1
9

,1
9

0
 

$
1

0
0

,3
2

3
 

$
1

1
2

,4
0

0
 

$
1

2
1

,4
9

3
 

$
1

1
4

,9
0

7
 

$
1

1
3

,8
4

1
 

$
1

3
1

,6
3

6
 $
1

4
1

,6
8

1
 

$
1

3
3

,9
6

3
 

$
2

5
,9

0
8

 

$
4

7
,2

4
1

 

$
4

0
,5

7
8

 

$
4

5
,4

1
1

 

$
4

8
,3

7
1

 $
5

6
,3

5
1

 

$
5

4
,3

7
1

 

$
5

3
,1

1
9

 

$
4

3
,1

6
5

 

$
4

5
,9

5
3

 $
5

5
,0

4
0

 

$
8

4
,1

5
3

 

$
3

5
,4

3
1

 

$
3

0
,4

3
4

 

$
3

4
,0

5
8

 

$
3

6
,2

7
8

 

$
4

2
,2

6
3

 

$
4

0
,7

7
8

 

$
3

9
,8

3
9

 

$
3

2
,3

7
4

 

$
3

4
,4

6
5

 

$
4

1
,2

8
0

 

$
6

3
,1

1
4

 

$
2

3
,6

2
1

 

$
2

0
,2

8
9

 

$
2

2
,7

0
6

 

$
2

4
,1

8
6

 

$
2

8
,1

7
5

 

$
2

7
,1

8
6

 

$
2

6
,5

5
9

 

$
2

1
,5

8
3

 

$
2

2
,9

7
7

 

$
2

7
,5

2
0

 

$
4

2
,0

7
6

 

2 0 0 7  - 2 0 0 8 2 0 0 8  - 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 9  - 2 0 1 0 2 0 1 0  - 2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1  - 2 0 1 2 2 0 1 2  - 2 0 1 3 2 0 1 3  - 2 0 1 4 2 0 1 4  - 2 0 1 5 2 0 1 5  - 2 0 1 6 2 0 1 6  - 2 0 1 7 2 0 1 7  - 2 0 1 8

LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND - ACTUAL, PROJECTED AND TARGETED ENDING RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE

Actual Restricted Balance Projected Restricted Balance Targeted Maximum Restricted (6 Months) Median Restricted (4.5 Months) Targeted Minimum Restricted (3 Months)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 18 Last Update: 08/11/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Net Position- Schedule #10

Unaudited

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2007 - 2008 2008 - 2009 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017

1,065,182$        797,310$        743,364$       701,655$        764,962$        753,546$        870,474$           966,934$           1,074,051$       1,225,307$       

Beginning Unrestricted 206,732$        176,061$       145,453$        122,187$        218,040$        274,879$           283,219$           210,203$           223,396$           

Total Operating Revenues 819,713             842,844          839,091          911,333          995,795          1,203,751      1,210,148         1,208,069          1,486,137          1,513,451          

Total Operating Expenses 897,771             931,460          913,672          871,731          911,714          1,058,250      1,105,899         1,121,774          1,322,863          1,383,367          

Operating Income/(Loss) (78,058)              (88,616)           (74,581)          39,602            84,081            145,501          104,249             86,295               163,274             130,084             

Nonoperating Revenues/(Expenses) 16,918                3,999              2,264              439                  356                  28,266            551                     819                     1,175                  50,106               

Net Income/(Loss) (61,140)$            (84,617)$        (72,317)$        40,041$          84,437$          173,767$        104,800$           87,114$             164,449$           180,190$           

797,310$           743,364$        701,655$       764,962$        753,546$        870,474$        966,934$           1,074,051$       1,225,307$       1,210,653$       

Ending Unrestricted 206,732$           176,061$        145,453$       122,187$        218,040$        274,879$        283,219$           263,216$           223,396$           418,240$           

Ending Unrestricted 

12,695$             -$                12,998$          121,185$        65,500$          178,815$        168,228$           185,163$           239,776$           95,058$             

Fiscal year depreciation expense: 56,688$             53,946$          54,707$          57,878$          62,965$          61,887$          71,768$             78,046$             88,520$             109,712$           

Unrestricted Net Position Targets:

* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

^ Minimum (3 months of operating expenses): 224,443$           232,865$        228,418$       217,933$        227,929$        264,563$        276,475$           280,444$           330,716$           345,842$           

^ Target specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.

* Target not specifically identified in our existing fund balance/net position policy.  As a proprietary fund, this fund is not supported by property tax revenues; therefore there is no requirement for a

maximum target on unrestricted net position.

NOTE> In accordance with our existing policy, the target minimum unrestricted net position amount is calculated based on the respective years' operating expenses (excludes capitalizable expenses) less 

any debt service expenses.

Maximum

Median 

RECREATIONAL FACILITIES FUND (Proprietary- Enterprise Fund)

Audited

Beginning Investment in Capital Assets

Ending Investment in Capital Assets

Ending Investment in Capital Assets

Fiscal year investment in capital assets:

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 19 Last Update: 8/11/2017



$
2

0
6

,7
3

2
 

$
1

7
6

,0
6

1
 

$
1

4
5

,4
5

3
 

$
1

2
2

,1
8

7
 

$
2

1
8

,0
4

0
 

$
2

7
4

,8
7

9
 

$
2

8
3

,2
1

9
 

$
2

6
3

,2
1

6
 

$
2

2
3

,3
9

6
 

$
4

1
8

,2
4

0
 

$
2

2
4

,4
4

3
 

$
2

3
2

,8
6

5
 

$
2

2
8

,4
1

8
 

$
2

1
7

,9
3

3
 

$
2

2
7

,9
2

9
 

$
2

6
4

,5
6

3
 

$
2

7
6

,4
7

5
 

$
2

8
0

,4
4

4
 

$
3

3
0

,7
1

6
 

$
3

4
5

,8
4

2
 

2 0 0 7  - 2 0 0 8 2 0 0 8  - 2 0 0 9 2 0 0 9  - 2 0 1 0 2 0 1 0  - 2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1  - 2 0 1 2 2 0 1 2  - 2 0 1 3 2 0 1 3  - 2 0 1 4 2 0 1 4  - 2 0 1 5 2 0 1 5  - 2 0 1 6 2 0 1 6  - 2 0 1 7

RECREATIONAL FACILITIES FUND- ACTUAL, PROJECTED AND TARGETED END ING UNRESTRICTED NET 
POSITION

Actual Net Position Targeted Minimum Unrestricted (3 months)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas 20 Last Update: 8/11/2017





1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 17-0823 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A CHANGE ORDER 

INVOLVING AN INCREASE IN THE CONTRACT PRICE OF $10,000.00 OR MORE  
(TENNIS CENTER HVAC PROJECT  

WITH PANDECON, INC.) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Illinois Compiled Statutes, Chapter 720, Section 5/33E-9, 
the Oak Brook Park District (the “District”) is required to make specific findings prior to 
authorizing any change order relative to a contract which would increase or decrease the dollar 
amount of the contract by $10,000.00 or more; and 
 
 WHEREAS, change order # 1 to the contract between the District and Pandecon, Inc for 
the amount of $3,790 was previously accepted by the Executive Director in accordance with the 
District’s Purchasing Policy, and a copy of said change order # 1 is attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director has presented and recommended the proposed 
change order # 2 to the contract between the District and Pandecon, Inc. for the amount of 
$7,495, and a copy of said change order # 2 being attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and made part 
hereof, to the District’s Board of Park Commissioners (“Board”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the total sum of said change orders attached hereto as Exhibits “A” and “B” 
would increase the contract price by $11,285 thereby requiring the Board’s authorization to 
accept change order 2. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT, DuPage and Cook 
Counties, Illinois, as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That after reviewing the explanation of the Executive Director as to the 
necessity of and reasons for the change orders attached hereto as Exhibits “A” and “B”, the 
Board finds as follows: 
 

A. That the circumstances which necessitated said change orders were not reasonably 
foreseeable at the time the contract was entered into. 

 
B. That the basis of the change orders was not within the contemplation of the contract when 

the contract was signed. 
 
C. That it is in the best interests of the District to approve the change orders in its proposed 

forms.  
 



2 
 

D. That to the extent that it may have been necessary to go to bid relative to the work 
contemplated by said change orders, bidding is hereby specifically waived as to the 
change order work. 

 
SECTION 2.  That having made the findings set forth in Section 1 above, the Board 

hereby approves the change order 2 attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and directs and authorizes 
the Board’s President to execute said change order on behalf of the District. 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 21st DAY OF AUGUST, 2017 
      
AYES: ____________________________________________________ 

NAYS: ____________________________________________________ 

OTHER: ___________________________________________________ 

 
             
           Sharon Knitter, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Laure Kosey, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
Exhibit A 

Change Order 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Kluber 
Architects + Engineers 

From: Don Ware 

Re: 1 053 - Oak Brook Park District 
Tennis Center HVAC Upgrade 

Date: July 24, 2017 

The listed items are Enclosed 

Qty. Date Description 

1 07/24/2017 RFP #001 

3 07/24/2017 Change Order #001 

AHn: Ron Pansing 

Address: Pandecon, Inc. 
725 Cheever Ave. 
Geneva, IL 60134 

Tel: 

Via Ground Delivery 

Kluber, Inc. 
1 0 S. Shumway Ave. 

Batavia, ll!inoi:r 6051 0 
Telephone: 630.406.1213 

Fax: 630.406.9472 
'NWW.kluberinc.com 

D Reviewed D For Your Information D Please Comment D Reply ASAP I&J See Below 

Remarks: Please sign all 3 Change Orders and forward them on to Laure Kasey with their attachments. 

Copies to: Kluber, Inc. File 

rdw
Highlight



8AIA Document G701"- 2001 
Change Order 
PROJECT (Name and address): 

1053 - Oak Brook Park District 
Tennis Center - HV AC Upgrade 
Oak Brook Tennis Center 
1300 Forest Gate Road 
Oak Brook, IL 60523 

TO CONTRACTOR (Name and address): 

Pandecon, Inc. 
725 Cheever Ave. 
Geneva, IL 60134 

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 00 I 
DATE: July24, 2017 

ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NUMBER: 16-310-1053 

CONTRACT DATE: April 17,2017 
CONTRACT FOR: General Construction 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 

OWNER: [gj 

ARCHITECT: [gj 

CONTRACTOR: [gj 

FIELD: 0 
OTHER: 0 

(Include, where applicable, any undisputed amount attributable to previously executed Construction Change Directives) 

The original Contract Sum was 
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 

The Contract Time wi ll be increased by Zero (0) days. 
The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

306,678.00 
0.00 

306,678.00 
3,790.00 

310,468.00 

NOTE: This Change Order does not include changes in the Contract Sum, Contract Time or Guaranteed Maximum Price which have 
been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been agreed upon by both the Owner and 
Contractor, in which case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive. 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER. 

Kluber, Inc. 
ARCHITECT (Firm name) 

10 S. Shumway Ave., Batavia, Illinois 
60510 

u~ .... 
Donald Ware Jr. 
(Fyped name) 

7 ... z.L( ~ t7 
DATE 

Pandecon, Inc. 
CONTRACTOR (Firm name) 

725 Cheever Ave., Geneva, IL 60134 

ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

Ron Pansing 
(Fyped name) 

DATE 

Oak Brook Park District 
OWNER (Firm name) 

1450 Forest Gate Road, Oak Brook, 
illinois 60523 
ADDRESS 

BY (Signature) 

Laure Kasey 
(Fyped name) 

DATE 

AlA Document G701 1"- 2001 . Copyright © 1979. 1987, 2000 and 2001 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reseJVed. WARNING: This AlA" 
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AlA" Document, or any 1 
portion of It, may resu lt In severe c ivil and criminal penal ties, and wil l be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was 
produced by AlA software at 14:52:18 on 07/24/2017 under Order No.7162091718_1 which expires on 09/17/2017, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (2016556086) 



IUuber Architects 

10 S S1nunway 
Batavia,i1l. 60510 

Don Ware 

Pand 

Oakbrook Tennis Club water line replacement quote 

7/14/,2017 

We will cut out old galvanized piping in bathrooms and replace with type I copper 
We will be replacing roughly 20' of 2" pipe, 20' of 1 %", 60' of% and 20' of W' pipe. 
All lines will have dielectric unions where we tie back into old pipe 
Valves will be installed where existing valves are now 

Please schedule for 2 days of work. May not take two days to complete but you never know when 
working with old pipe. 

Total $3,790.00 

630-466-7854 725 CHEEVER AVE. GENEVA, IL 60134 



4 
 

Exhibit B 
Change Order 2 

 
 
 















1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 17-0824 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A CHANGE ORDER 

INVOLVING AN INCREASE IN THE CONTRACT PRICE OF $10,000.00 OR MORE  
(FAMILY LOCKER ROOM PROJECT  

WITH KINGSTON TILE COMPANY, LTD.) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Illinois Compiled Statutes, Chapter 720, Section 5/33E-9, 
the Oak Brook Park District (the “District”) is required to make specific findings prior to 
authorizing any change order relative to a contract which would increase or decrease the dollar 
amount of the contract by $10,000.00 or more; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Executive Director has presented and recommended the proposed 
change order to the contract between the District and Kingston Tile Company, Ltd., a copy of 
said change order being attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made part hereof, to the District’s 
Board of Park Commissioners (“Board”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, said change order attached hereto as Exhibit “A: would increase the 
contract price by $20,000.00. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT, DuPage and Cook 
Counties, Illinois, as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That after reviewing the explanation of the Executive Director as to the 
necessity of and reasons for the change order attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, the Board finds as 
follows: 
 

A. That the circumstances which necessitated said change order were not reasonably 
foreseeable at the time the contract was entered into. 

 
B. That the basis of the change order was not within the contemplation of the contract when 

the contract was signed. 
 
C. That it is in the best interests of the District to approve the change order in its proposed 

form.  
 
D. That to the extent that it may have been necessary to go to bid relative to the work 

contemplated by said change order, bidding is hereby specifically waived as to the 
change order work. 

 
SECTION 2.  That having made the findings set forth in Section 1 above, the Board 

hereby approves the change order attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and directs and authorizes the 
Board’s President to execute said change order on behalf of the District. 



2 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 21st DAY OF AUGUST, 2017 
      
AYES: ____________________________________________________ 

NAYS: ____________________________________________________ 

OTHER: ___________________________________________________ 

 
             
           Sharon Knitter, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Laure Kosey, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Exhibit 
Change Order 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 



    
731 Oak Ridge, Romeoville, IL 60446 

815-552-2168 

KINGSTONTILECARPET.COM 

 
August 13, 2017 

 

Wight Construction 
2500 N Frontage Road 
Darien Il. 60561 
P (630) 969-7000 
Email: cpolte@wightco.com 

  
    

Attention: Craig Polte 
Regarding:  Oakbrook Shower Walls  

 
 
 

The below described work completed per plans and specifications for the total sum of:     
 
 
Waterproofing 

 Waterproof walls using Mapei Aqua Defence. 6” mesh at all inside corners. 
 
 
Ceramic Tile   

Furnish and install - Florida Tile Tides #28110 – Sea Salt 12x24 on shower partition walls. Metal schleuter on all 
outside corners.  Partition walls to be tiled both sides and go up 8’. New durock to be hung by others 

 
 Grout 

  Grout to match existing  
 
 
 
 Male locker room has 6 partition walls 
 Female locker room has 4 partition walls 
          Total Cost:  27,265.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
Exclusions: Premium time, phasing, epoxy grout,  
 
 
 
 

 Signature__________________________       Date________________ 
Respectfully Submitted 
KINGSTON TILE CO LTD 

Paul Bacarella 

Project Manager 

Office: (815) 552 – 2168 ext # 21 

Paul@Kingstontilecarpet.com 

paul
Line

paul
Typewritten Text
$20,000.00


	August 21, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room
	August 21, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room
	August 21, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	10. ADJOURNMENT [Request a motion and second to Adjourn the Meeting. Voice Vote  “All In Favor”…]
	August 21, 2017 Agenda.pdf
	August 21, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room
	August 21, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room

	July 17 2017 regular meeting minutes.pdf
	July 17, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room

	NEWFORMATAquaticBoardStat July 2017.pdf
	Swim lessons
	Birthday Parties

	July 2017 Athletic Field Revenue Report.pdf
	Sheet1

	Board Facility Stats Comparison New Chart 2016-2017 July 2017.pdf
	Facility Statistics

	Update Non Staff Membership July 2017.pdf
	Sheet2

	Changeorder R-17-0823 Tennis Center HVAC Project - Pandecon Change order 2.pdf
	Sharon Knitter, President

	Changeorder R-17-0824 Family Locker Room - Kingston Tile Co.pdf
	Sharon Knitter, President




